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\’ May 23, 1975 Conference
- List 1, Sheet 2

No. 74-1263 _ Timely
| Houl BREWER [Warden] Cert to CA8 (Vogel, Ross,
’ Cor Webster, dissenting)
v.

‘ m__os___li‘) WILLIAMS [Prisoner] Federal/Civil (§ 2254)
1¢- 653

1. Resp was convicted in Iowa State court of murder
w and was sentenced to life imprisonment. By a 5-4 decision,
the Towa Supreme Ct affirmed. 182 N.W. 2d 396 (1971). The
USDC (SD Iowa) (Hanson) issued a writ of habeas corpus on
grounds that statements made by resp to police and other
evidence derived from the statements should have been sup-
. pressed as a result of violations of resp's Fifth, Sixth,

and Fourteenth Amendment rights. CA8, with one judge




).

dissenting, affirmed. The State petitions this Court to reverse
that decision on grounds that the DC did not give the state-
court findings the required presumption of correctness under
28 U.S.C. § 2254(d), that an accused can waive a personal con-
stitutional right in the absence of counsel, that under the
facts in the record, the State met its burden in showing that
there had been such a waiver, and that a more flexible standard
be adopted in replace of the rules of Mirandas v. Arizona, 384
U.S. 436 (L966).

2. FACTS: Most of ﬁhe facts are undisputed. On

-

Christmas Eve, 1968, the Powers family was attending a wrestling

tournament at the YMCA in Des Moines, Towa. Wheh 10-year-old
Pamela Powers did not return from a trip to the restroom, a
search was begun. The police could not locate her within the
building. Resp Williams, who had a room on the seventh floor
of the building, was seen coming from the elevator into the
lobby carrying a bundle wrapped in a blanket. He spoke to
several persons and explained that he was carrying a mannequin.
He asked for the help of a l4-year-old boy who opened the door
of resp's car which was parked at the curb. That boy later
testified that when resp put the bundle in the passenger's seat
he saw "two legs in it and they were skinny and white." YMCA
personnel attempted to see the bundle, but resp closed and
locked the car doors and drove away. The next day, his car

was found in Davenport, about 160 miles east of Des Moines. At

that point an arrest warrant was issued for resp's arrest.
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On December 26, 1968, resp placed a call from Rock
Island, Iilinois, to his attorney, McKnight, in Des Moines.
McKnight advised resp to surrender to Davenport police, which
resp did. McKnight then proceeded to the Des Moines police
station. He was again called by resp, then in police custody
in Davenport. In the presence of the chief of police and
Detective Leaming, the attorney told resp that he would be
transported from Davenport to Des Moines by Des Moines police,
that he would not be mistreated or grilled, that they would

talk the situation over in Des Moines, and that resp should

Vﬂnake no statement until he reached Des Moines. It was agreed

that Leaming and another officer would go to Davenport to
transport resp back, and that McKnight would not go with them.
McKnight and the police agreed that resp would not be ques-
tioned until he was back in Des Moines and had consulted with
McKnight.,

While in custody in Davenport, resp, at his request, had
consulted with a local attorney, Kelly. Kelly advised resp
to remain silent until he was back in Des Moines and had con-
sulted with McKnight. Upon arriving in Davenport, Leaming
gave resp Miranda warnings, which were not repeated during the
trip to Des Moines,

During that trip, Leaming and resp sat in the back seat.
They engaged in conversation about religion, resp's reputa-
tion, his friends, police procedures, aspects of the investi-

gation of the crime in question, and other topics. At that
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time Leaming knew that resp had been a patient in the Mo.

——

State mental hospital for a period of three years and was

——

an escapee from that institution. On several occasions

during the trip, resp told Leaming that he would tell him the
whole story once he had consulted with McKnight. Leaming him-
self testified that the purpose of his conversation was to
obtain information about the girl before resp could talk to
McKnight., Leaming at one point said the following to resp:

"Eventually, as we were traveling along there, I
said to Mr. Williams that, 'I want to give you some-
thing to think about while we're traveling down the
road.' 1 said, 'Number one, I want you to observe the
weather conditions, it's raining, it's sleeting, it's
freezing, driving is very treacherous, visibility is poor,
it's going to be dark early this evening. They are pre-
dicting several inches of snow for tonight, and I feel
that you yourself are the only person that knows where
this little girl's body is, that you yourself have only
been there once, and if you get a snow on top of it you
yourself may be unable to find it. And, since we will
be going right past the area on the way to Des Moines,
I feel that we could stop and locate the body, that the
parents of this little girl should be entitled to a
Christian burial for the little girl who was snatched
away from them on Christmas Eve and murdered. And I
feel we should stop and locate it on the way in rather
than waiting until morning and trying to come back out
after a snow storm and possibly not being able to find
it at all."

Resp asked why the police thought they would be passing near
the body, and Leaming said that they knew that the body was
somewhere in the vicinity of Mitchellville, Leaming then
told resp that he did not want him to answer but wanted him
to think about it. Leaming in fact did not know that the
body was near Mitchellville. Some time later, resp asked if

the police had found the girl's shoes. Leaming then discussed
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with resp the evidence that had been found, the location
where resp had hidden the shoes, and what the shoes had
looked like. A stop at a service station where resp said he
had put the shoes did not lead to their discovery. There

was then some further discussion of the blanket. A stop at

a rest area disclosed that the blanket had already been found.
After that stop, the discussion of religion, resp's friends,
and other topics resumed. At a point near Mitchellville,

resp told the police that he wanted to show them where the
girl's body was. The body was then located. Leaming's car
did not have a two-way radio, but a police car following it
did have such a radio. That radio was used to communicate
with the chief of police in Des Moines during the trip.
Exam;nation of the body revealed that the girl had been sexually
abused and strangled.

The State had disputed two facts. First, it contended
that no agreement not to question resp had been entered into.
But the trial court found explicitly that such an agreement
had been made with McKnight. The DC accepted that finding.
Second, the State contended that Kelly, the counsel in Davenport,
had not made a request that he be allowed to travel with resp
to Des Moines. The trial court made no finding on this issue,
but the DC ruled that such a request had been made. The DC
also ruled that Kelly had told Leaming that resp was not to

talk until reaching Des Moines.
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.’: The Iowa Supreme Court (Larson, Moore, LeGrand, Rees,
Uhlenhopp; Stuart, dissenting; Rawlings, Mason, Becker, dis-
sénting), in affirming the conviction, held that resp had
been adequately advised of his vrights and had understood
them. Under all the facts, the trial court had been correct
in finding a valid, voluntary waiver of his rights in making
the statements during the car trip to Des Moines. The SC
pointed out that it appeared that '"Williams had been told by
his attorney something to the effect that he would have to
tell the officers where the body was.'" After a court-ordered
examination, resp had been found not to be incompetent or
insane. The trial court had considered all relevant evidence,

(. %and substantial evidence supported its finding of a waiver.

It could not say as a matter of law that the suggestion given
resPbe Leaming was .so improper as to make the statements
___——pafterward inadmissible. Nor would it hold that there could be
(ocsect sm 0o valid waiver of rights without the presence of counsel.
%M'The dissents argued that the State had not met its burden of
Ty

showing that the statements had resulted from a knowing and
L

[intelligent waiver of resp's rights against self-incrimination

anvbband to counsel. As Justice._ Stuart put it, "the only reason-
Qa

" able conclusion is that Captain Leaming embarked on a psycho-
j&muflf %ogical campaign to obtain as much information from this
A wAVER
, mentally weak defendant as possible before letting him talk

T i

’*“"de{gk'-to his counsel."

\x.
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In the DC, counsel for the State and resp had agreed
that the case would be submitted updg¥%rial record without
the taking of further testimony. The DC proceeded to make
findings, which it viewed as not conflicting with anything
found by the trial court. The question then was whether the

state courts had correctly applied the law. It found a

violation of resp's right to counsel under Massigh v. United

States, 377 U.S. 201 (1964). Under the factual context of

this case, indeed, there could have been no effective waiver

of counsel in the absence of counsel. See McLeod v. Ohio,

381 U.S. 356 (1965); Mathies v. United States, 374 F. 2d 312

(CA DC 1967) (opinion of Burger, J.). There was also a viola-
tion of Miranda in that after resp had been given the warnings
he had expressed the wish not to answer any question until
talking with McKnight in Des Moines. He was interrogated,

however, on the trip to Des Moines. See also United States wv.

Neilson, 392 F. 2d 849 (CA7 1968); Mathies, supra. The DC

refused to agree with the state courts' decision on waiver.
It gave great deference to the findings of fact of the trial
court, but waiver was a question of law, the constitutional

significance of the facts. Those courts had applied a

standard conflicting with Miranda in that the only evidence

supporting the finding of waiver was the fact that statements
were given. It appeared that in truth the burden had been
placed upon resp. Indeed, there was no evidence supporting

waiver. Finally, the State had not met its burden of showing
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that the statements had been voluntarily made.  See Spanc v.
New York, 360 U.S. 315 (1959). The DC did note that the
record was not entirely clear as to the timing of the incrim-
inating statements.
CA8 affirmed. It ruled that the DC had correctly
\._-\__\

applied § 2254(d) to this situation, With respect to the dis-
puted facts (that Kelly requested that he be allowed to
accompany resp and that Leaming knew that resp was a deeply
religious person and that he used that fact to elicit incrim-
inating statements from resp), the state court had not made
findings; neither side had requested an evidentiary hearing in
the DC; and substantial evidence supported the DC's findings.
The question of waiver was one of "ultimate fact' and a federal
question. The DC had been correct in finding that the state
courts had applied an incorrect standard to the facts in find-
ing a waiver of resp's constitutional rights. The DC was
Correct, therefore, in finding a denial of the right to counsel
which had not been validly waived. The key facts were as
follows:

"(1) The appellee was an escapee from a mental insti-

tution wherein he had been confined for approximately

three years, (2) appellee asked for and obtained an

attorney to represent him at each end of the trip

between Davenport and Des Moines; (3) Mr. Kelly,

appellee's Davenport attorney, had asked permission to

accompany the appellee on the trip from Davenport to

Des Moines, which permission was denied by the police;

(4) both attorneys had advised appellee not to make

any statements until after arriving in Des Moines and

consulting with Attorney McKnight; (5) appellee gave

several indications that he did not want to talk about
the case until after he arrived in Des Moines; (6)
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appellee stated a number of times that he would talk
about the case after he had seen Attorney McKnight

in Des Moines; (7) by subtle interrogation Detective
Leaming got the appellee to make incriminating state-
ments used to convict him; (8) the police violated an
agreement they had with Attorney McKnight that the
appellee was not to be questioned before consultation
with Mr. McKnight in Des Moines."

Judge Webster dissented. Under the facts in the record,
the state courts' conclusion that the statements were the
product of a voluntary waiver of resp's rights was correct.

The record indicated that the statement that resp would show

2

W
the ES}?ce where the body was had been volunteered and not

am

e;ESEEEE_EEESEEE_SESEEigns. Massiah could be distinguished
since here resp had known that police were noting his state-
ments and that they could be used against him. The statements
were also voluntary. Leaming had planted a thought, but had
not ¢oerced resp into talking. In addition, since the state-
ments were volunteered, there was no violation of Miranda.
The broken promise was at the bottom of the result reached,
and the consequence was the application of the exclusionary
rule to a state case to improve future police methods.

Rehearing en banc was denied, with Judges Gibson,
Stephenson, and Webster voting to grant the petn.

3. CONTENTIONS: a. Petr argues that the courts below

did not give the requisite presumption of correctness to the

state court findings as to waiver. As to issues not resolved

by the record, an evidentiary hearing should have been held.
b, Petr argues that the decisions below have in effect

adopted a rule that an accused cannot effectively waive his
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right to counsel at interrogation absent the presence of
counsel. In his view, the CA's that have addressed this ques-
tion conflict. See petn, at 10-11.

c. There are facts which support the finding of waiver.
Resp asked for and received the assistance of counsel, and
counsel told him to refrain from making statements. He was
given Miranda warnings three times. Resp initiated conversa-
tions with Leaming. Resp's incriminating statements occurred
spontaneously and not in response to interrogation. Leaming's
comment about the weather took place about two hours before
the incriminating statements. . *

d. Petr asks that the Court withdraw the rules of
Miranda in favor of the approach . Congress adopted in 18
U.S.C. § 3501, A more flexible system is necessary. Criminal
justice personnel are better trained and more responsible now,
and can be better trusted to apply a more flexible standard
responsibly,

4. DISCUSSION: The § 2254(d) contention appears to

J(be an attempt by the State to break its stipulation to try
the DC case on the basis of the record in the state proceed-
ings. The State apparently did not foresee that certain
factual issues not resolved by the state court would assume
importance in the federal proceedings. Although the DC did
make findings which the trial court had not made, the disagree-
ment between the state and federal courts seems to be more in
in the nature of different weights given to the undisputed

facts in answering the question of waiver.
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The DC accepted a rule that under the facts presented

Sy

that there could not have been a valid waiver in the absence

e

of counsel. The CA did not even purport to adopt such a

———————

limited principle. There is no square conflict on this point.

—

See Moore v. Wolff, 495 F. 24 35, 36-37 (CA8 1974). United

States v. Durham, 475 F. 24 208 (CA7 1973), is not to the

contrary.

Although there is a Massiah aspect to this case, its
essence remains one of the question of waiver under Miranda.
It sufficiently resembles Michigan v. Mosley, No. 74-653, to
be ‘held for that case after a response is received.

There is no response.

5/13/75 Malysiak DC op in supp. brief; CA
. op in petn appx

jp
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BENCH MEMO

TO: Mr. Justice Powell DATE: Sept. 2, 1976
FROM: Gene Comey"

No. 74-1263 Brewer v. Williams

I. INTRODUCTION

This case presents primarily two issues. First, should

this Court's landmark decision in Miranda v. Arizona be: modified
or overruled. The second issue is ﬁhethér on the facts of this
case the defendant waived his right to counsel. Your "aid to
memory' memorandum indicates that you are not interested in

modifying or overruling Miranda v. Arizona, and for that reason

I have devoted no attention to the contentions of the parties

on that question. The second issue is fact-specific, and from
e e  a———

the split among the judges in both the state and federal courts
one would get the impression that it is a close question.
Fourteen judges have thus far ruled on the waiver issue, and
they have split seven to seven. Two federal appellate judges,
one federal DC judge, and four state supreme court judges'have
concluded that the défendant did not waive his right to counsel.
One federal appellate judge, five state supreme court judges,
and one state trial judge have reached the opposite conélusion.
With respect to the issue of waiver, your memorandum
expressed an interest in whether the federal courts reached
different findings of fact than had the state courts in violation

o
of 28 U.S.C. 2254. Section II of this memorandum addresses the

%* The federal DC's findings of fact are reproduced in full in
Section II. They have been underlined to set them off from

my own discussion.



factual issues of the case. That section focuses on the DC's
findings of fact, indicating those findings as to which there
is no dispute and identifying the extent of the dispute over
other factual issues, With that factual background in mind

the federal issue of waiver can be determined. Before turning
tb a discussion of the iegal issue of waiver, however, Section
I1I briefly examines the state's claim that the federal DC
erred in failing to hold an evidéntia:y hearing to resolve some

of thg factual igsues in this caée.

II. FACTUAL ISSUES

1. On December 24, 1968, a family by the name of Powers

attended a wrestling tournament in the YMCA building in Des

Moines, Jowa. When Pamela Powers, aged ten, failed to return

from a trip to the restroom, a search was instituted, but she

could not be found. YMCA personnel subsequently called the

police. [Citations to record and Iowa Supreme Court opinion
omitted in this and all other District Court findings of fact.]
This finding of fact is undisputed.

2. Suspicion rather quickly focused on the [defendant]

who had léft the YMCA in his automobile shortly after Pamela

Powers' disappearance. On December 25, 1968, [defendant's]

car was found in Davenport, Iowa, approximately 160 miles

east of Des Moines, and a search was instituted for him in the

Davenport area by the Davenport and Des Moines police and by the

Iowa Bureau of Criminal Investigation. At about this time, a

warrant for [defendant's] arrest, on a charge of child-stealing,

was issued and filed in Polk County. This finding of fact is

T

undisputed.
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3. On the morning of December 26, 1968, [defendant)called

his Des Moines attorney, Mr. Henry McKnight, from Rock Island,

Illinois. Mr. McKnight advised [defendant] to surrender himself

to the Davenport police. This finding of fact. is undisputed.

4, At approximately 8:40 a.m. on December 26, 1968,

[Eefendani]did surrender himself to the Davenporf police. He

was placed under arrest and booked by the Davenport police.

at 11:00 a.m. on the same day,[&efendanﬁ]was arraigned before

a state court judge in Davenport as a fugitive to be held on

the Polk County warrant, and notified qﬁ the charges againsf

him.

This finding of fact is undisputed. Moreover, the record
shows, and no one disputes, that the defendant was given Miranda
warnings at the time of his arrest by the Davenpbrt pdlice and
at the time of arraignment by the state court judge.

5. Following his telephone conversation with [defendant]

on December 26, 1968, Mr. McKnight proceeded to the Des Moines

Police Department, where he talked to various officials including

Detective Leaming, about the [defendant's] proposed surrender

and his subsequent transportation to Des Moines. While Mr.

McKnight was at the Des Moines Police Department, he received

a long distance telephone call from [defendant], who at that

time was in custody in Davenport. Mr. McKnight told [defendant]

that he would be picked upiinDDavenport, that he would not be

mistreated or grilled, that they would talk it over in Des

Moines, and that [defendant] should make no statement until he

reached Des Moines. Mr. McKnight's portion of this conversation




was carried on in the presence of Chief of Police Wendell

Nichols and Detective Leaming.

Although there is testimony in the trial transéript which
would indicate that Captain Leaming did not hear attorney
McKnight advise defendant to say nothing until his return to
Des Moines, that point seems no longer to be in dispute. See

Petitioner's Brief at 40. Moreover, the majority opinion.for

_ the Iowa Supreme Court noted that it was undisputed that both

McKnight and Kelly had told defendant not totalk until he was
in McKnight's presence in Des Moines. App. at 9.

Although notrmentioned in this finding by the DC, Leaming
testified at trial that he had heard McKnight tell the defendant
over the phone that '"You [the defendant] have to tell the
officers where the body is . . . When you get back here,
you tell me and I'll tell them." App. at 96. Leaming also
testified that after the phone call with defendant, McKnight
told Leaming that the defendant had told McKnight that the girl
was dead. App. at 96-97. Police Chief Nichols, who also
overheard that phoﬁe conversation, testified that he could
not recall McKnight's saying.that the defendant had told
McKnight that the girl was dead, and his recollection was
that they were all "speculating" that the girl was dead. App.
at 108-09. |

6. As a result of these conversations, it was agreed

that Detective Leaming would go to Davenport to pick up [defendant]

without McKnight, and bring him directly back to Des Moines.
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At this time there also was an/égreement between Mr. McKnight

/

and the police that the [defendant] would not be questioned-

until after he had returned to Des Moines and consulted with

‘Mr. McKnight.

- The state attempts to challenge the finding that there
was an agreement between attérney McKnight and the Des Moines

police. The state notes that the "facts are certainly not

clear." Petr's Brief at 39-40. But this is one disputed issue

as to ﬁhich the state trial court made an express finding of
fact in ruling on the motion to suppress, and the finding was
that the police had entered into that agreement with McKnight.
App. at 1. r

7. On December 26, 1968, Detective Leaming drove from

Des Moines to Davenport to pick up the [defendant]; Detective

Leaming was accompanied by Detective Arthur Nelson. This
finding of fact is undisputed.

8. While he was in Davenport, the [defendant] consulted

with a local attorney, Mr. Thomas Kelly, about his situation.

[Defendant] had asked to talk with Mr. Kelly, and their

conversations were carried -on in the context of an attorney-

¢client relationship. While [defendant] was in ﬁzvenport, Mr.

Kelly in effect acted as his attormey. Mr. Kelly advised

1

[defendant] to remain silent until he got to Des Moines and

talked with Mr. McKnight. This finding of fact is undisputed.

- Although not noted by the DC in this finding, there

- is a conflict in the record over whether the Davenport police

had informed the Des Moines police by phone that the defendant



. did not want to talk until he met with his attorney in Des
Moines. Ackerman, of the Davenport police, testified that he
so informed the Des Moines poiice, App. at 43; Leaming of the
Des Moines police, denied being so informed, App. at 88-89.

9. Detectives,K Leaming and Nelson arrived in Davenport

at about noon on December 26. After meeting Mr. Kelly and

being informed that [defendant] was eating lunch, Leaming and

Nelson went to lunch. When they returned at approximately

1:00 p.m., they had some conversation with Mr, Kelly.

and defendant. At this time Detective Leaming gave [defendant]

his Miranda warnings; these warnings were not repeated during

the trip to Des Moines. When Detective Leaming gave these

Miranda warnings, he told [defendant] that they would be

. "visiting'" during the trip to Des Moines.,

-~ This finding of fact is really undisputed. The defendant
testified at the suppression heariﬁg that he couldn't remember
whether Detective Leaming had read him his Miranda warnings.

But the defendant did remember that he had been read Miranda

T gttty
~

warnings.by the Davenport police and at the arraignment, and

that he had fully understood his rights at those points in
e Y e

time. Defendant does not challenge at this stage the finding

that Leaming read defendant his Miranda rights.
the
10. After/Miranda warnings referred to in the preceding

paragraph were given [defendant] again conferred privately

with Mr. Kelly, whom Detective Leaming understood to be acting

as [defendant's] attorney (in addition to Mr. McKnighé} After




this conference, Mr. Kelly again spoke with Detective Leaming.

Mr. Kelly told Detective Leaming that it was his understanding

that [defendant] was not to be questioned until he got to

Des Moines; when Detective Leaming expressed some reservations,

Mr. Kelly stated that that understanding should be carried out.

- There is a disputé with respect to this finding of fact.
Kelly testified at trial that he had discussed with Leaming
the agreement between the Des Moines police and attorney McKnight
that the police would not question the defendant until the
defendant could confer with attorney McKnight in Des Moines.
Kelly testified that he discussed that agreement with Leaming

before Leaming went to lunch in Davenport, and immediately

.....

béﬁore Leaming and the defendant departed for Des Moilnes.
According to Kelly, Leaming said: '"This isn't quite the way

I understand it." Kelly responded:r "Well, this is the way 1
understand it [aﬁd] I think it should be carried through.™

App. at 107-08. Leaming on the other hand, testified that Kelly
never told him that the defendant was not to be questio%kuntil
the defendant had an opportunity to confer with attorney
McKnight. App. at 78.

The state trial judge did not resolve ﬁhe merits of this
factual dispute. Neither the majority nor the dissenting opinions
in the Iowa Supreme Court mention this factual issue. The DC
_resolved the discrepancy in favor of Kelly's testimony after
reviewing the testimony in light of the transcript as a whole,

and after discounting Leaming's testimony "for the most part"
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. in light of his self-interest. [I would note par{nthetically

at this point that the state trial judge expressly found that
Leaming ‘testified with "less than complete candor" regarding

the agreement bétween'McKhight and the Des Moines police,
discussed under 96 supra. App. at 2.] Noting that the state
cqurts had:not resolved this factual issue, and that the case

was submitted to the DC on the basis of the record and proceedings
in the state court, the CA8 majority concluded that.the DC
correctly resolved the disputed evidentiary facts. Petn for

cert. at A9.

11. Before Detective Leaming left for Des Moines with

the [defendant], Mr. Kelly asked Detective Leaming that he

be permitted to ride along in the police car to Des Moines.

. This request was refused by Detective Leaming.

- There 1s also a dispute with_reSPect to this finding

of fact. Kelly testified at trial that, at about the same
time that Leaming indicated that he did not agree with Kelly's
interpretation of the agreement between the Des Moines police
and attorney McKnight, Kelly offered to ride back to Des Moines
with the defendant to make sure that the defendant's righté were
protected. App. at 107-08. Leaming testified at the suppression
hearing that Kelly did not make that offer. App. at 55. The
state trial judge did not make a finding on this issue, nor did
the Towa Supreme Court indicate its view of the evidence. The
four dissenters on the Iowa Supreme Court concluded that Kelly
had been denied permission to accompany fhe defendant to Des

. Moines. App. at l4. As with § 10 supra, the CA8 majority

concluded that the DC had properly resolved the dispute.
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12. On several occasions during the trip to Des Moines,

and -after the aforementioned Miranda warnings were given in

Davenport, [defendant] told Detective Leaming that he would

talk to him after he returned to Des Moines and consulted

with his attorney, Mr. McKnight. The Miranda warnings were never

repeated during the trip itself.

- There is really no dispute with respect to this finding.
There is uncontradicted testimony in the record that on a
number of occasions during the trip from Davenport to Des Moines

the defendant told Leaming the following: '"When I get to Des

PR

Moines and see Mr. McKnight, I aTLgoing to tell you the whole
;E;;;Tnﬂ—Eﬁg;gﬂgggﬁgnﬁumber of aspects of that statement to -
—_— . _

keep in mind. First, the cited statement is Leaming's testimony
as to what the defendant told Leaming; consequently, we have

no aséurance that those were the defendant's exact words.
Second, the context in which Leaming gave that testimony is
quite significant. Leaming was asked by defense counsel whether
the defendant at any time in the car said that he wanted to

have an attorney present before he talked with Leaming. App.

at 58. Leaming responded: 'Not in that particular manner,

no sir.'"  Defense counsel then asked: 'Well, tell us in what

' And at that point Leaming gave the statement

maﬁner, Captain.'
quoted above: '"That would be the closest he would have come-
to it." Aﬁp. at 58. There is thus something to be said for
defendant's argument in this Court that Leaming for one

construed those words to be in some manner or other a request

to speak with counsel prior to speaking with the police. Finally,
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it appears from Leaming's testimony that the defendant first
made that statement shortly after they ""gassed up" at Davenport
and got on the freeway toward Des Moines. App. at 65.

One of the factors relied on‘by the state trial judge in
denying the motion to éuppress was the "absence on the
Defendant's part of any assertion of his right or desire not
to give information absent the presence of an attorney. . ...”
App. at 1. The state now argues that the state trial judge
found as a matter of historical fact that the defendant did
not express a desire to see counsel before speaking with the

police. Petitioner's Brief at 59-61. 1 think the state is

wrong. It seems to me that the state trial judge merely
— .

interpreted the defendant's statement to be something other than
an expression of a desire to see counsel, Whether those words
constitute "in some manner' a request to meet with counsel 1is

a federal question, just as is the issue of voluntariness.

The fact is that the statements were made, and the DC and

CA8 were free to give them a different interpretation than

did the state judge. On the:other hand, if one reads the state's
argument to be that the finding of the state trial judge was
that the defendaﬁt never made those statements, the finding
would be "not fairl§ suppofted by the record," 28 U.S.C.

2254(d) (8), and hence not entitled to a presumption of
correctness under’ § 2254. The fact that the defendant made

the statements was uncontradicted; indeed, it ﬁas police

testimony that established that the statements were made.
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. ' The majority opinion for the Iowa Supreme Court also refers
to the absence of a request to consult with counsel during the
car trip; my comments with respect to the state trial judgé's
interpretation of the statement apply with equal force to the
"interpretation" of the Lowa Supreme Court.

13. The [defendant] had been a patient at the State Mental

Hospital at Fulton, Missouri for three years prior to his escape

on July 6, 1968.) These facts were known to the Des Moines police,

including Detective Leaming, at the time the [defendant] returned

to Des Moines from Davenport with Detective Léaming.

dfcjyiﬁj - There is no dispute over the fact that defendant was an
vywﬁtj;/&/escapee from a mental institution, and that Leaming was aware
D{bﬁﬁfqdﬁéf that fact. Although not mentioned in the findings of fact
. \ by the DC, the state trial court had ordered an examination at
~ the Iowa Mental Health Institute, and that examination did not
yﬁfJPJ}ﬁ show defendant to be incompetent or insane at that time., Of
udﬁ) course, competency to stand trial does not mean that the DC
was not free to consider as part of the totality of the circum-
stances the fact that defendant had been in a mental institution
for three years prior to the commission of the crime.
- The state contends that there was no basis for the DC's
finding that Leaming knew that the defendant was a ''deeply
,religious" person. Petitioner's Brief at 65-66. The DC may
have erred when it used the adjective ''deeply', but the record
‘makes it clear that Leaming considered defendant to be a

religious person. Leaming testified that when speaking with
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. thel defendant‘ -he, (Leaming) referred to the defendant as '"Reverend",
App. at 63; Leaming also testified that he had quite a discus-
sion with defendant concerning religion, App. at 56. And Leaming
testified that he advised the defendant that he (Leaming) himself
had religious training and a religious background. App. at 80.

14, Following the giving of Miranda warnings by Detective

Leaming, [defendant] did not state that he wished to waive

his Miranda rights. In fact, as rdoted in Paragraph 12, gupra,

[defendant] indicated that he did not wish to talk on the trip

by stating that he would talk after he got to Des Moines and

spoke with Mr. McKnight. Nevertheless, while Detective Nelson

drove, Detective Leaming carried on a conversation with

//// [defendant] during the trip concerning religion, [defendant's]
. 4 Feputation, and various other topics, including [defendant's]
g}nuop/ﬁﬂfm\friends, Reverend, A Mr. Searcy, whether the police had checked

ggr fingerprints in [defendant's] room, the intelligence of

///// other people, police procedures, organized youth groups,

singing, playing a piano, playing an organ, "and this sort of

thing." At about this time, Detective Leaming also testified

that he $old defendant that he did not hate him or wish to kill

him; that "I myself had had religious training and background

as a child, and that I would probably come more near praying

for him than I would to.abuse him or strike him;" and that

he was a good police officer and would protect [defendant] and

not allow anyone to molest or abuse him.
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- There is really no dispute over this finding of fact.
Although not noted by the DC, it is worth mentioning that
Leaming testified that one of the first questions the defendant
asked Leaming in the car was whether Leaming hated the defendant
and wanted to kill the defendant. Leaming's testimony also
indicates that the defendant was concerned that the state police
.officers following in a second patrol car were hoping that
defendant would "jump out [of the car] and run so they could
shoot me [the defendant.]" App. at 94-95.

15. According to Detective Leaming's own testimony,

the specific purpose of this conversation was to obtain

statements and_informatidn from the [defendant] concerning

themissing girl. In this regard, the following testimony by

Detective Leaming on cross-examination during mretrial

proceedings in the Polk County District Court is particularly

relevant:

Q. [by McKnight]: Now, when you left, just
before you left, do you remember we had parted
greetings and didn't you say, "Il go get him
and bring him right back here to Des Moines'?

A. Yes sir,

Q. You said that to me didn't you? A. Yes,
sir.

Q. Knowing that you were dealing with a person
from a mental hospital, did you say to him you don't
have to tell me this information, did you say that
to him out there on the highway? A. What information?

Q. The information that he gave you, the defendant
gave you, you didn't say that to him, did you? A. No,
sir.
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Q. In fact, Captain, whether he was a mental
patient or not, you were trying to get all the
information you could before he got to his lawyer,
weren't you? A. I was sure hoping to find out
where that little girl was, yes, sir.

T h ok

Q. Well, I'll put it this way: You were
hoping to get all the information you could before
Williams got back to McKnight, weren't you? A.
Yes, sir.

- This finding of fact is apparently undisputed. Note
that the DC's finding does not state that this was "interroga-
tion," but rather that the Eurgése of Leaming's conversation
with the defendant was to get as much information as possible
from the defendaﬁt before the defendant could confer with
McKnight. The state's argument is apparently that Leaming .

did not ﬁinterrogate” defendant in the car; but that contention
does not call into dispute the uncontradicted testimony -
indeed the admission by Leaming - that Leaming was trying to
get information from the defendant.

16. Detective Leaming specifically appealed to [defendant's]

known )
/religious nature in order to obtain statements from him concerning

thw whereabouts of the missing gifl. The following testimony

by Detective Leaming himself, describing what he said to the

[defendant], clearly sets out the approach, which he used:

Eventually, as we were traveling along there,
I said to Mr. Williams that 'I want to give you
something to think about while we're traveling down
‘the road.' I said, 'Number one, I want you to observe
the weather conditions; it's raining, it's sleeting,
it's freezing, driving is very treacherous, visibility
is poor, it's'going to be dark early this evening.
They are predicting several inches of snow for tonight,
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and I feel that you yourself are the only person

that knows where this little girl's body is, that

you yourself have only been there once, and if you
get a snow on top of it you yourself may be unable

to find it. And, since we will going right past

the area on the way into Des Moines, I feel that

we could stop and locate the body, that the parents
of this little girl should be entitled to a Christian
burial for the little girl who was snatched away from
them on Christmas Eve and murdered. And I feel we
should stop and locate it on the way in rather than
waiting until morning and trying to come back out
after a snow storm and possibly not being able to
find it at all.'

- There is no dispute that Leaming made this statement
to the defendant in the car on the way to Des Moines. §See
App. at 81, Leaming also tesfified with respect to this state-
ment at the suppression Hearing. App. at 63, 1In the version
summarized at the suppression heéring Leaming addresses the
defendant as '"Reverend.'" App. at 63.

- There is a dispute over the point in time at which
Leaming made the 'Christian burial' statement to the defendant.
The state contends that it is impossible to tell whether Leaming
made that statement before or afteflthe defendant stated that
he would tell the whole story when he saw attorney McKnight.
See finding 12 supra. Petitioner's Brief at 44. Counsel for
the defendant notes that there are indications iﬁ the record
which would lead one to conclude that Leaming's ''Christian
burial' statement came after the defendant made the stateﬁent
which the DC considered to be an expression of a desire to see-
counsel. Respondent's Brief at 17 n. 9. To the extent that

the relative timing may be important, see Section IV.C infra,
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I think the inferences to be drawn from the record favor
defendant's interpretation.

17. Following this statement [defendant] asked why

Detective Leaming felt that they were going past the body,

and Detective Leaming told {defendant] that he knew the body

was somewhere in the area of Mitchellville, a town near

Interstate 80. Detective Leaming then stated, "I do not want

you to answer me. I don't want to discuss it further. Just

think about it as we're riding down the road.”

- This finding of fact is undisputed.

18. 1In fact, Detective Leaming ‘did not know that the body

~was near Mitchellville, and he made the statement to defendant

specifically to ind&’a [defendant] to tell him where the body was.

- This finding of fact is undisputed. It is quite clear
that Leaming did not know where the body was. Moreover,
Leaming admitted at trial that his statements to the defendant
with respect to the location of the body were not“pne thousand
percent’correct. App. at 93-94. The DC's findiﬁg with respect
to Leaming's intent to induce the defendant to tell the police
about the location of the body is clearly correct. McKnight

. asked Leaming at trial whether he made those statements to
induce the defendant to tell Leaming where the.body was located.
Leaming responded: I made it hoping that he would." App.
at 94.

19. At some point east of Grinnell, Iowa, and after the

conversation outlined in Paragraphs 14 and 17, supra, [defendant]
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asked if the police had found the victim's shows. Without any

further constitutional warnings, Detective Leaming discussed

with [defendant] what evidence had been found, where [defendant]

had put the shoes, and what the shoes looked like. A stop at

a gas station where the shoes were supposed to be produced no

results.

- This finding of fact i's undisputed.

20. Following this incident, there was some further dis-

cussion of a blanket; a stop at a rest area disclosed that the

blanket already had been found.

- This finding of fact is undisputed.

21. After the stop at the rest area, there was further

discussion about "people and religion and intelligence and

friends of [defendant's] and what people's opinion was of him

and so forth.'" Then, "some distance still east of the

Mitchellville.turnoff," [defendant] stated that he would show

the detectives where the body was.

- This finding of fact is undisputed.

22, Following [defendant's] statement, the police, including

Detective Leaming, drove to a place indicated by [defendant],

where they located the body of Pamela Powers.

- This finding of fact is undisputed.

23. Although Leaming's automobile was not equipped with

a radio capable of reaching Des Moines during most of the trip,

a state car which was following at all times was eqdﬂ%éd with

such a radio. The radio was in fact utilized to keep.in touch
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with Chief Nichols. Chief Nichols was informed of the side

trip to Mitchellville, but did not .relay this information to

Mr. McKnight. -

- This finding of fact is undisputed.

24. As noted above [defendant's] statements of December

26, 1968, to Detective Leaming were admitted into evidence at

[defendant's] trial, along with other evidence obtained pursuant

to these statements, all over [defendant's] objections,

- This finding of fact is undisputed.

CA8 divided the "historical facts" in this case into_two

n—

groups: challenged and unchallenged evidentiary facts. After
o~ S——y -3
. ‘réading the briefs, the transcripts reproduced in the appendix,

and the various state and federal court opinions, I have

-l

h% d concluded that CA8's summary of the_’_{unchallenged facts (see .petn

at A2-A6) is completely accurate. Most of that summary concerns

L]

ts as to which there was uncontradicted testimony in the

v state proceedings. As to the agreement between McKnight and
uw”‘Js, the Des Moines police, there was testimony going both ways,

but the state trial court found that the agreement existed.

That finding was accepted by the DC and by CAS.

With respect to the second category/gghallenged evidentiary"
facts, CA8 noted' that the state challenged a number of the DC's
findings of fact on the gfound that they were contrary to the

findings of the state trial court and thus violated 28 U.S.C.
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2254(d). Those facts were: (I) that Kelly advised Leaming
prior to Leaming's departure for Des Moines that the defendant
was not to be questiongd until McKnight could meet with the
defendant in Des Moines; (2) that Kelly asked to be permitted
to accompany defendant to Des Moines and that Leaming denied
the request; (3) that Leaming knew that the defendant was a
deeply religious person and that Leaming used that knowledge
to elicit incriminating statements from the defendant; and (4)
that Leaming's misstatement that he knew the location of the
body had a compelling influence on the defendant to make.
incriminating statements. CA8 expressly noted that there
were discrepancies between the testimony of Kelly and Leaming,
and that there were some ambiguities in the testimony on which

the DC based its findings. CA8 noted that the state court had

not resolved the merits of these factual disputes, 28 U.S.C.

2254 (d)(l), that both parties waived an evidentiary hearing
in the DC, and that there was a substantial basis in the record
for the findings of the DC.

With respect to facts (1) and (2), Kellj and Leaming gave
markedly different versions of the events, and there is simply
no way to determine what really haﬁpened:‘ The state court did
not resolve the dispute; the DC resolveéj%ﬁut did so without
hearing live testimony ahd thus without being able to judge
credibility as well as it could have. With-respect to fact (3),
1 refer you to my discussion under § 13 supra. As I said there,

I think the DC erred in using the aadverbwe "deeply" (which
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in itself is ambiguous), but that the DC was correct in noting
that Leaming knew that the defendant was a ''religious type"
and tried to use that to get information. With respect to
point (4), my own view is that this is not an "historical fact"
but rather an inference to be drawn from the totality of the
circumstances. Whether Leaming's '"religious" references, when
combined with the other "historical facts'" in this caée had
a compelling influence oﬁ the defendant is the legal question
in the case, |

You indicated in your '"aid to memory" memorandum that if
the facts were as summarized by CA8 in the petn at Al4, you
might be more willing to affirm that if the facts were actually
otherwise. I would note that points (1), (2), (4), (6) and
.(8) of tHat.summary on page Al4 are undisputed. - Point (3)
concerns the request by Kelly to accompany the defendant to
Des Moines, and that was resolved against the state by the DC.
See ¢ 11 supra. There is no real "evidence" to support point
(5); CA8's conclusion that the defendant gave several indications
that he did not want to talk about the case until after he met
with McKnight is actually an inference'based on point (6). As
my discussion in ¢ 12 supra indicétes, it is undisputed that
defendant made statements to the effect that he would talk after
he met with McKnight; thus point (6) in CA8's summary is
undisputed. The sfate trial court concluded that those state-
ments were not expressions of ‘a desire to meet with counsel
before talking; the DC and CA8 concluded otherwise. I think

there is much to be said for the DC's finding. Finally as with
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. point (5), point (7) is not an "historical fact" either.
Actually, the question in this case is whether by subtle inter-
rogation Leaming was able to get the defendant?’%o talk without
first ﬁ:;%gga volunfarily waived counsel.

g ‘ Where then does dissenting Judge Webster part company with
UQféﬁgigt. the CA8 majority. I can find two major areas of disagreement.
6£~&b9*jy. First, as to some of the undisputed facts in the case, Judge

Webster simply draws different inferenées and conclusions. For

example, CA8 took the defendant's statements that he would talk

after he saw his attorney in Des Moines to be an expression of

a desire to refrain from giving information until that time.

Judge Webster conciudes otherwise. Second, Judge Webster

objects to the fact that the DC decided issues of credibility
. from a bare record without holding an evidentiary hearing.
jiy‘ib’ . I discuss that aspect of the case in the next section but

gff::::fig—’ suffice it to say here that the parties waived their rights

(2 Jy*’

A/u’x'fla' to an evidentiary hearing, and I do not think Judge Webster

W is on strong ground in faulting the DC in this regard.

k‘ Nk MI‘I. THE FAILURE OF THE DC _TO HOLD AN EVIDENTIARY HEARING

{
W The state suggests that one of the questions raised by

Uaﬁf;dvfkb this case is whether the DC should have conducted an evidentiary

Lﬂ‘ hearing. Petitioner's Brief at 61-65. Given the fact that the
state court failed to resolve '"the mefits of [certain] factual
disputes,™ 28 U.S.C. 2254(d)(l), the state argues that the DC
was obligated under Townsend to conduct an evideptiary hearing

. before resolving the merits of those disputes. I think the
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state is wrong.

" At the outset, it is worth noting that the state raises

———

this point for the first time in this Court. The state

p— B

specifically stipulated below that the DC should resolve the
issues on the basis of the state court record without additional
evidentiary hearings. The state did not ask for reconsideration
or additional evidentiary hearings after the DC filed its
memorandum and order granting the writ, Nor did the state
complain to CA8 about the failure of the DC to hold an
evidentiary hearing. A petition filed with this Court is not
the appropriate time to raise such an.issue.

In any event, there is no substantive merit to the state's
contention. Both the state and the defendant were provided
with an opportunity for an evidentiary hearing, and both declined
to make use of that option. I do not think Townsend can be
read to require a federal DC to hold a hearing to resolve‘
disputed issues of fact despite the stipulation of the parties
that such a hearing is unnecessary. It seems to me that the
state is simply trying to get out of 'its initial.stipulation
that an evidentiary hearing was unnecéssary.

There is, of course, somé merit to the state's point
that it is difficult for a federal DC to reach findings of
fact when it is faced with directly contradictory testimony
and is deprived of the opportunitﬁ to observe the witnesses.

But the state carries the burden of showing that the defendant

waived his right to counsel, and the state must therefore beﬁr
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the cost of its decision to forego an evidentiary hearing=-

it must run the risk that the federal DC will resolve the
factual dispute in favor of the defendant. Indeed, it is
precisely because the state bears the burden, and a heavy
one at that, that the DC properly, in my view, resolved the
dispute in favor of the defendant. —E—/

I would note as a éoncluding factor that the failure of
the DC to hold an evidentiary hearing on certain disputed issues

of fact may be an irrelevant issue. To the extent that the

waiver question can be decided on most of the undisputed facts

in the case, a possibility which I discuss in Section IV, the
failure to hold an evidentiary hearing on the disputed facts
is irrelevant.

IV. AN ANALYSIS OF THE FACTS UNDER THE GUIDELINES
ESTABLISHED IN MIRANDA

Just this past Term this Court summarized its holding in
Miranda in these terms: ''In the Miranda case this Court
‘promulgated a set of safeguards to protect the delineated
constitutional rights of persons subjected to custodial police
interrogation. In sum, the Court held in that case that unless
law enforcement officers give certain specified warnings before

questioning a person in custody, and follow certain specified

procedures during the course of any subsequent interrogation,

any statement made by the person in custody cannot over his
objection be admitted against him as a defendant at trial,

even thoﬁgh the statement may in fact be wholly voluntary."

%* / [This footnote is on the next page.]
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% / As the textual discussion indicates, my view is that it

was not reversible error for the DC to fail to hold an evidgntiary
e e P

g

hearing on the facts of this case. That conclusion does not
Amp— i N N

mean that this Court must review the DC's findings of fact under
the "clearly erronecus' standard. As you noted for the Court .

in Neil w. Biggers, 409 U.S. 188, 193 n.3: "This is a habeas

corpus case in which the facts are contained primarily in the

- state court record (equally available to us as to the federal

courts below) . . . ." A number of federal courts have concluded,

as did dissenting Judge Wehster in the case sub judice, that in

circumstances such as those presented by this case the clearly

erroneous standard does not apply. See, e.g., United States

ex rel. Gonzales v. Zelker, 477 F.2d 797, 800 (CA2 1973);

Ward v. Wainright, 450 F.2d 409, 412 (CA5 1971).
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Michigan v. Moseley, 96 S.Ct:. 321, 324 (1976) (emphasis added).

The procedures to be followed when a person in custody asks to

consult with a lawyer - which is what this case is all about -

were detailed in Miranda and cited in Michigan v. Mosley:

"If the individual stateszthat he wants an attorney, the

interrogation must cease until an attornev is present. At that

time the individual must have an opportunity to confer with

the attorney and to have him present during any subsequent

questioning." Miranda v. Arizona, 384 U.S., at 474, cited in

Michigan v. Mosley, 96 S.Ct., at 325 n. 7.

The highlighted language details two important aspects

—

of the Miranda procedures which are relevant to this case.
First, the'passage indicates when and under what circumstances

a resumption of questioning is permissible., This stands in

S distin e Fion
contrgazéF;;E;EE_Eﬂe language of Miranda that was at issue in

Michigan v. Mosiley, which the court expressly noted did not
indicate the circumstances under which questioniné could be’
resumed. Indeed, it was in that context that Justice Stewart
dropped a footnote to indicate that the Mosley case did not
involve the languaée of Miranda that is at issue in the case

sub _judice. Second, Miranda indicates that the individual must

have the opportunity to have counsel present during any
subsequent questioning. It does not state that he has to have
an attorney present;jbut it does state that-he must have the
opportunity to have qounsel present, Moreover, the highlighted

language notes that that opportunity must be made available
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during any subseqqent gquestioning; it does not imply that
opportunity to consult with counsel must be made available
only for initial questioning. Miranda itself put that confention to
rest.

With those procedures in mind, disposition of this case
requires analysis of these questions: iTst) after receiving ﬁ?04~
Miranda wérningg did the defendant state that he wanted an

attorney; did the police engage in subsequent interroga-

tion without the defendant having an opportunity to have counsel

present; and can a defendant waive his right to counsel %I

during subsequent interrogation without consulting an attorney dut

on the waiver issue, and if so, was there a waiver of the riéht LIPS o

to counsel on the facts of this case? A‘flé .

A. Did the defendant state that he wanted to have an ., .
attorney?

It is undisputed that the defendant wasrgiven his Miranda
warnings on three occasions: ‘Wﬁéﬁﬁﬁééﬁas;firépaarrested, when
he was arraigned, and when officer Leaming arrived at Davenport
to transport him to Des Moines. See Y1 4, 9, supra. Immediately
after he was arrested by the Davenport police and givén his
Miranda warnings, the defendant_spoke by telephone with attorney
McKnight. At that point in time several things should have
been clear to the Des Moines police. They were informed that
attorney McKnight was acting in a representative capacity for
the defendant. The state trial court found as a factual matter
that McKnight informed the police that the defendant was not

to be questioned until.the defendant could consult personally with




=

26.

McKnight in Des Moines. The state court's finding of fact went
even further: it found as&that the police had eﬁtered into an
"agreement' with attorney McKnight that the defendant would not
be questioned until after his return to Des Moines.

A great deal of attention is devoted in the briefs to the
relevancy of this agreement}' I don't think the agreement itsel
has any relevancy in a contractual sense - i.e., whether the
police were bound by the agreement and whether the defendant
had certain rights based on violation of a binding agreement.
The most important aspect of the state court's finding of fact 1
is that for purposes of examining the applicability of Miranda

rocedures the defendant did ask to consult with an attorney,
did retain an attorney, and through that attorney did notifi ~
the police officers that he desired not to be interrogated
until he had met with his attorney in Des MoineS. Based on

that finding of fact by the state trial court, and accepted ’

f

St

by the DC, the appropriate Miranda procedures were triggered:

interrogation was to cease until counsel was present. __-fj
There is considerable discussion in the briefs as to

whether the defendant's statements in the car that he would

tell his story after meeting with McKnight in Des Moines were

" actually assertions of the right not to give any information

until his attorney was present. Given my analysis of the
”agréement" as found by the trial court, I don't think it is
necessary for the Court to resolve that issue. Whether or not
the defendant asserted that right in the car on the trip to

Des Moines, he had asserted it earlier through retained counsel
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acting as his agent. And his assertion of that right wés made
" perfectly clear to the same police officers who transported
him from Davenport to Des Moines. Since the state trial court
made an explicit finding on the first request not to be
interrogated until counsel was present, I see no need to get
involved in resolving the ambiguities of a possible reassertion
of that right.

If you disagree with my analysis of the first assertion
of that right through counsel, then the ambiguity concerning
the statements in the car must be resolved. As I noted earlier,
I think the DC properly interpreted that statement as an
assertion of the.right not ﬁo be interrogated without the
presence of counsel. See § 12, supra. The state trial court's
conclusion that the defendant did not assert that the right
is not binding on the federal courts since it was not a finding

with respect to an "historical fact." It is undisputed that

the defendant made the statement that he would talk to the
police after he met with counsel in Des Moines; the legal

significance of that fact is to be finally determined by the

federal, not the state, courts. Brown v. Allen, 344 U.S. 347,
507. Why would anyone inform the police that he would talk

“to them after meeting with counsel if he also intended to

talk to them before meeting with counsel? 1In any event, to

the extent that there is some ambiguity in the statement, I

see no reason towupset the considered judgment of three federal
judges below that the statement was an assertion of the right

not to speak until counsel was present. Finally, as 1 noted
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in my discussion of § 12, supra, it is impossible to tell with
certainty whether the defendant's statements were made prior
to Leaming s '"Christian burial stafement. But after having
read the entife record it is my impression that the defendant's
brief correctly concludes that in all likelihood the ''Christian
burial" statement was made after the defendant asserted his
right ﬁot to be questioned without having counsel present.

| It is my view that the "agreement' between McKnight and
the Des Moines police triggered the applicable Miranda
procedures. If it is necessary to reach the issue I would
find that the defendant's statements in the car also triggered
the applicable procedures. And I would note that the fact
that the defendant saw attorney Kelly in the period intervening
between his assertion of his rights through attorney McKnight
and his possible interrogation in the car has no bearing on
determining whether the Miranda procedures were followed.
Once the defendant asserted his right, the police were required
to provide him with the opportunity to have counsel present
during any subsequent questioning.

B. Was the defendant subjected to "questioning'.within
the meaning of Miranda? ‘

The state argues that the defendant was not questioned;
after all, officer Leaming merely made a statement about the
weather and about the value of a "Christian burial". 0ddly
enough, however, the.state.concedés that Leaming wénted'to
find-out where the body.was. Petitioner's Brief at 54. The

state's willingness to conceéde that point is understandable
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. in light of Leaming's admissions at trial that he made his
statement about the weather and about the value of a Christian

burial hoping that the defendant would respond and tell him

uf"’ where the body was. ‘Indeed, Leaming admitted at the suppression

‘T\”pﬁi;,ﬁljbu_hearing and at trial that he was hoping to get as much informa-

ﬂﬁifw v s tion as possible from the defendant before the defendant could

. e
j::g::;ﬂ/ meet with attorney McKnight in Des Moines. App. at 60, 92-95.
' /s

Apparently realizing that it would be difficult to win
;f;jfi:)(f the "no interrogation' argument, the state relies on a second
. _b‘vzﬁp argument: Leaming's "psychological interrogation' is not the
d::Zi“nﬂ,”‘ type of interrogation-which this Court has condemned. According
‘ﬁﬂNyv'ﬂﬂ‘to the state, Miranda has never'bééﬂicahétfﬁégft55bfbscr$5e

a play upon a murder suspect's religious conscience.
. Petitioner's Brief at 54, citing 3 Wigmore, Evidence, § 840,

p. 840 (Chadbourn Revision 1970), which in turn cites Joy,

Confession 51 (1842). 1In one of the most incredible contentions
I have ever encountered, the state argues that "of all things.
that can never be held coercive, 'subtle interrogation' must
surely lead the list. For if it is subtle enough, the
interrogated doesn't feel any coercion or compulsion at all."
Petitioner's Brief at 55.

It seems to me that Leaming's statement about the weather,
deépite the disclaimei.that he wanted the defendant to think
about it and did not want the defendant to answer him, almost
surely qualifies as interrogation or questioning for Miranda

purposes. Though I won't attempt to formulate specific guidelines

‘ in this memo, as a general rule I would be willing to conclude
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that police behavior which admittedly is designed to elicit
incriminating information from a defendant in custody qualifies
as "questioning." Moreover, I think there is absoiutely no
merit in the state's argument that "subtle interrogation' is
somehow immunized from the reach of Miranda. Indeed, before
reaching its explicit holding with respect to warnings and
procedures, the Miranda opinion delineated a number of then
existing police techniques designed to elicit incriminating
information, a number which certainly qualify for the label
"subtle'. Furthermore, if counsel is needed to protect the’
accused's interests when he faces fairly straightforward police
questioning, the argument for the presence of counsel during
""'subtle interrogation" is even stronger.

C. The issue of walver,.

This is perhaps the most complicated issue in the case -

m—— ey

can a suspect who has Fetained counsel be qdestioﬁed in the
absence of counsel so long as he is given Miranda warnings and
waives his rights? The answer to that questioh involves a
determination as to the scope of the interplay between Miranda

and Massiah v. United States, 377 U.S. 201 (defendant deprived

of Sixth Amendment rights when there was used against him at his
trial evidence of his own incriminating words obtained from him
.?:fter he had retained counsel and had been released on bail,
which federal agents had deliberately elicited from him by means
of his coﬁefendant who, cooperating with the police, engaged

defendant in conversation in the presence of a hidden radio
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transmittef after he had been indicted and in the absence of
his counsel). Most courts have taken the position that the
police may question a suspect known to be reﬁresented by counsel
without notifying his lawyer of their purpose so long as the
prisoner is advised of, and waives, his right to counsel. Few
courts haveﬁtféagléiupholding the admissibility of statements
when the person represented by counsel initiates the conversation
or.requests an interview with a particular police officer.

The state contends that CA8 adopted the following per se
rule in the instant case: '"Once an accused has counsel, he
cannot effectively waive his right to counsel for purposes of
interrogation, absent presence of (or notice to) counsel."
Petitioner's Brief at 35. The state is patently wrong. CA8's
opinion makes it clear that the rule in that C%rcuit is that
a prisoner can waive the right to counsel in tHe absence of

counsel. App. at Al2, citing Moore v. Wolff, 495 F.2d 35

(CA8 1974). Rather than pursuing a per_se approach, CA8 simply

determined that on the basis of all the facts of this case:Ehe

state had failed to establish that the waiver was knowingly,
h WM

i~

intelligently, and voluntarily made. App. at Al2-AlL55.
. — S i
This Court has not expressly ruled on that aspect of the

waiver question. In the course of oral argument in Miranda,
Mr. Justice Stewart asked the question whether a defendant
needed a lawyer before he could waive his right to a lawyer;
and the brief for the ACLU in that case pressed heavily for a
per se rule against waiver in the absence of counsel. But

Miranda did not expressly adopt that position.
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In order to be meaningful, discussion of "waiver'" in
this context must focus on the precise question at issue.
The petition claims to present for review a rather broad
question: '"Can an accused waive his Sixth Amendment right
to counsel in absence of counsel previously retained who
advised the accused to remain silent?" The answer to that

question, it seems to me, is quite clear: in some circumstances,

yes. For example, a suspect who has retained counsel and been
advised to remain silent, but who nevertheless decides to "'get
everything off his chest", is free to turn himself in to the
police, and, after receiving Miranda warnings, proceed to give
a yoluntary incriminating statement. Or a suspect in custody
who has already consulted with counsel may:inotify police that

he is prepared to give a statement, and, after again receiving

Miranda warnings, may give a voluntary statement. I would be

hard pressed to argue persuasively that such statements should
be inadmissible merely because the police allowed the defendant
to give a statement in the absence of counsel. At ieast where
the accused initiates the contact, waiver is a relevant question

and is to be determined under Johnson v. Zerbst.

But that is not this case. The question in the instant
case is whether the waiver concept is applicable once the
police violate Miranda by refusing to résPect the suspect's
request not to be interrogated until he had had an opportunity
to have counsel present. The defendant in this case retained
counsel, notified the Des Moines police (through his agent -

attorney McKnight) that he wished to remain silent until he

14,«.—'
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could have his attorney present, and refused to speak with the
Davenport police. As I read Miranda, the applicable guidelines
required cessation of questioning until counsel was present.
On the facts of this case, those guidelines were violated:
questioning did not cease ''until an attorney [was] present."

So analyzed, this case does not present a question of

waiver of Miranda rights and subsequent interrogation. To the

contrary, this case involves a violation of Miranda procedites
and an alleged subsequent waiver. 1In that respect Miéhigan V.
Mosley teaches that under Miranda "any statement made by the
person in custody cannot over his’ébjection be admitted against
him as a defendant at trial, even though the statement may in
fact be wholly voluntary" where, as here, the police fail to
follow the prescribed.proéedures. 9 S.Ct., at 324. For that
reason, the defendant's statement is inadmissible.

I should note, however, that if you disagree with my
analysis in Section IV.A concerning assertion of the right to
counsel thrbugh attorney McKnigﬁE?I?gaclude instead that the
defendant first asserted that right in the car, then the
relative timing of the ”Cﬁristian buriai” statement and the
defendant's assertion of the right to counsel in the car could

prove to be crucial.

Ss
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I. THE VOLUNTARINESS ISSUE

The defendant -won 85 case in the Distriect Court on two

different theories. The—first theory was that there had been no

valid waiver of constitutional rights. TheZLecond theory Was- |
B that the statement had been given involuntarily. The District
Court disposed of the case on BOTH theories.
The state appealed the case to CA8, and challenged the District
Court's rulings on waiver and voluntariness. Since the CA8
majority disposed of the case on the ground that there had been
no valid waiver, it was unnecessaryy for them to reach the voluntariness
issue. Note, however, that Judge B Webster @ in dissent had
. 'E) reach the voluntariness question since he concluded that thewm
waiver.’L was volid.
In its petition to this court, the state challenged the
ruling of CA8 with respect to waiver. The state did not argue
in its '"questions presented" that the confession had been vol-

untarily given. The defendant now asserts that the state ''"failed

to raise" the voluntariness issue, and that there is thus an
Lonr which 4

unchallenged ominhpssiminessbmdens- independent grounsto affirm the

CA8 ruling. 1t seems to me that this all boils down to the
—z.______.——.‘________J_,_.—-\

following: CA8 reached its decision & on the ground of waiver;
P i
the defendant (respondent) is now free to assert any theory which

would support ¥ CA8's disposition of the case; thus, defendant
. (respondent) is free to argue that the confession was given in-
voluntarily. It doesn't matter that the state failed to challenge

in its '"questions presented'" every theory @ which might support




CA8's disposition of #we@ the case. Finally, I think this all

<

washes out in the end insofar as I do mot think there is much
to the District Court's involuntariness finding. See pages
A27-A29,

If the Court agrees with CA8 on the waiver issue, there is no

need to go into the voluntariness question. If the Court disagrees
WWaIV R4,

with CA8 on the voiujfaeénuns—zi question, then we are free to

consider the voluntariness issue. If that is the case, it seems

to me that it is completely unnecessary for the Court to remand
von voluntavinaes

the a@ case to CA8 for its views? the Court can simply note that

on these facts there is nothing to the involuntariness issue.

® IT. THE SANTOBELLO APPROACH BO‘/ 4o 287 C!‘i?')]

The Santobello case involved a broken promise concerning giie

a plea bargain. After negotiations with the prosecutor, the

defendant withdrew his previous not-guilty plea and pleaded
guilty to a lesser-e®included offense, the prosecution having
agreed to make no recommendation as to sentence. At defendant's
apvearance for sentencing several wgsmEm® months later, a new
prosecutor recommended the maximum sentence, which the judge
imposed. @ The m defendant then attempte}d unsuccessfully
to withdraw his guilty plea, and his conviction was affirmed on
appeal. This Court held that the ikaﬁ%sts of justice and proper
recognition of the pEEEETEERNY prosecutioh's duties in relation
to promises made in connection with plea bargaining required that
. the judgment of conviction be vacated.

* / The case was remanded to the state court to deFermine the
Gltimate relief to which the Jw@ma defendant was entitled.



It is possible to make a "Santobellozltype" argument in the

instant case., Here, the state court found as a factual matter

that the police had entered into an agreement with the defendant's

_attorney not to question the iNElS=IRNERy defendant until he

had an opportunity to consult with attorney McKnight in Des Moines.

Thw One could argue
that due process cons:.derat:l.ons justify e-ssssee suppression of
evidence aa oétalned § as a result of an explicit refusal dﬁ:‘?ﬁl/
police to honor an agreement they had with defense counsel with
respect to protection of the defendant's constitutional rights.

The case could thus be disposed of on a due process approach.

[Eee, for example, the attached copy of a brief dissent that

Justice Stevens wrote for a panel on CA7. That case is much less
"appealing' on its facts in that there was no agreement between
the police and defense counsel. Justice Stevens nevertheless found

a @GP due process violatbn.]

There are a number of problems with this Santobello-type

argument. First, Santobello itself is not at all clear as to the
PY‘D Sec v o

legal basis for the decision. Second, in Santobello the g.IHEp

] to make no < recommendation @

agreed

as to sentencing in exhange for a guilty plea. ¥l It is at

1 east arguable that on the facts of this case there was no

"econsideration" given by McKnight in exchange for the promise of
the g police. Perhaps McKnight, in the absence of that promise,

would s have wmmigt=immee gone {on hf?ownjto DavenportJ\to counsel
the defendant peawssHedi® in person. But it is not at all clear
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whether that is sufficient. Third, it may well be that "consideration,"

at least in a contractual sense, is unnecessary for utilization
of a SRR S-ntobello-type argument.

ihe final problem with the Santobello-type argument is

s This Santobello-type approach

o o -—.-_ - T
to the instant case is‘attractivej it is an approach by which

the Court can avoid some difficult waiver questions in a @ase with,

which is very fact specific., On the other hand, the CA9 opinion
which Tyler wrote indicates that there is some concern in the lower
courts as to what type of waiver analysis is required, and this may

be a good opportunity to provide that guidance.

ITT. ASSER;I&ON OF MIRANDA RIGHTS

I noted on page 26 of the bench memo that "through his attorney
[the defendant] did notify s the police officers that he desired
not to be interrogated until he as® had met with his attorney in
Des Moines." Memo at 26 (emphasis addeqth A number of clerks have

raised the question whether the defendant asserted his rights, or

whether they were asserted by his attorney with no evidence in

the record that it was the defendant's desire to wikE—=-
avoid interrogation until his attorney was present. To the extent
that it may be necessary to find some evidence in the record that -

the defendant was asserting his rights through his attorney I

would note that while in the custody of the Davenport police the
A
defendant refused to answexs_é?/questions. See Appendix at 43

(police officer Ackerman of the Davenport police testifies that



he had been informed by the defengQJQ that "he didn't wish to
say anything Lecause—-until he talked to his attorney in Des
Moines.'" ) That testimony was not summarized in the District

Court's findings of fact, but it is undisputed that Ackerman was

so informed.
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STEVENS, Circuit Judge {(dissent-
ing)}.

After counsel had heen appeiniled to
represent him, and while he was in cus-
tody, the defendant was visited by two
agents of the prosecutor! Defense coun-
sel wag not present and reccived no ad-
vance notice of their proposed visit.
The sole purpose of the visit was to ob-
tain cvidence for use at the trial. Ac-
cepling the prosecutor’s evidence as
true, defendant's participation in the
crime had already been established and,
therefore, no further investigation was
necessary, The work of the agents was

. trial preparation, pure and simple.

In a ¢ivil context I would consider this
behavior unethical and unfair® In a
criminal context T regard it as such a
departure from “procedural regularity”
as lo violate the due process clause of
the Fifth Amendment.3 If the evidence
of guilt is as strong as the prosecutor
contends, such dircet communication is
all the more offensive because it was un- .
necessary.  If there is doubt abhout de-
fendant’s guilt, it should not be over-
come by a procedure such as this,

I respectfully dissent.
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. BREWFR V. WILLIAMS

Justice Powell-

I have reexamined the notes that I took while reading the
various transcripts in this case.

~---1 have been unable to find any reference to the amount of
time it took the police to travel from Davenport to the Mitchelville
area (where the body was located). Nor have I been wmable to
find any time references as to the m amount of time that elapsed
between other crucial events, such as the giving of the Christian
burial statement and the defendant's statement that he would
iﬁ}hicate the location of the body,

---1 mentioned to you the other day that I was quite st sure

. that the Christian burial statement was made%ﬂe—eheé\shortly

after they filled the squad car up with gas in Davenport. Testimony
at page 8l of the Appendix suggqs‘suggests that I was wrong. Leaming

l[:-gfe.rfm?_ an &x Fewded convenvy‘-rm_g_,) )
(h‘“fhere summarizes various topics of conversation that he and the

defendant pursued/ and then notes that "eventually, as we were traveling

along there,'" he gave his Christian burial statement. On rereading
T s ——

my notes, it appears that the statement that was made '"not too long
et et

after [they] got on the freeway, after [they] had gassed up and

started,' was the defendantg's statement that he would tell the
vhole story when he got back to Des Moines and spoke with Mr. McKnight.
See Appendig at 65,
---As to statements made by Leaming concerning the crime, the ’
record is clear that he made the Christian burial statement, and that
. he told the defendant that he "knew' the body was in the Mitchelville
area. There are no otﬁggiég?é;ences in the transcript to statements

by Leaming concerning the crime. Leaming did speak with the



. de&%\defendant about the shoes and the blanket when they left
the highway to look for those items. It is also clear that Leaming
and the defendant did a great deal of talking during the trip.
For eu?example, Leaming testified that they had “eplmem
"quite a discussion relative to religion''. & Appendix at 56.

< .
According to anming, there was ''a great deal of conversation
velated

not related to the case and sa-:lsome conversation re.itziito the

case." 1Id.

. One )final observation. At the'end of the Christian burial
statement Leaming tells the defendant '"Now I just want you to
think about that when we are driving down the road.' The state
seems to think that this final statement takes the punch out
. of the whole Christian burial statement in that Leaming was telling
the defendant not to answer him. You can make a strong argument
that the final statement cuts the other way. Leaming is in
effect telling this "religious" person to ponder this Christian

burial point all the way to Des Moines,
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Supreme Qonrt of the Hnited States W.

Waslington, D. €. 20543

CHAMBERS OF
JUSTICE Wwm, J. BRENNAN, JR.

October 7, 1976

Williams

RE: No. 74-126% Brewer v.

Dear Chief:

I have asked Potter to accept the assignment of

the opinion for the Court in the above,

Sincerely,

Y,

The Chief Justice

cc: The Conference
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Miranda Analysis: You are given your warnings. You assert
the right to counsel. Miranda is clear: Interrogation must cease 321?:7
until your attorney is present (unless, you and I would add, there

has been a waiver prior to interrogation--for example, the suspect

is sitting in the cell awaiting his attorney and asks to make a

statement to get the whole thing off his chest)..

PRE-INDICTMENT

Massiah Analysis: There is no applicable analysis.
Massiah is post-indictment. .

Post- INDTCTMENT

Miranda Analysis: Same as above. Post-indictment makes
no difference.

Masshiah Analysis: SITUATION NUMBER ONE--YOU ASSERT YOUR
RIGHT TO COUNSEL. That is the instant case. Williams clearly
asserted his right to counsel, and the police interrogated him
knowing that he had asserted that right.  This violated his 6th
Amendment right to counsel, since there was no showing of waiver

nrior to interrogation,
Ho Ho nabt w il asrepied

SITUATION NUMBER _THO: You have not
ASSERTED |YOUR GITH RIGHT TO COUNSEL. at question is not presented
on the fagts of this case. But on a reading of pages sixteen to

seventeen\of the current draft, one would conclude that you still
have after\Massiah a right not to be interrogated until counsel

is nresenty) that you have to have affirmative evidence that you
waived that right, and absent such evidenc state ents h after
interrogation are inadmissible. Thig differs from Miranda, where .
you have to assert your githt to counfel. - —

R —— T —
T T —— o

I am bothered by as a matter of policy with situation
number two, but it is impossible I think to reconcile it with
Ma the ooposite result with Massiah. T think we should dodge it
in this case.



Supreme Gonrt of the Hnited States
Peshington, B. d. 20543

CHAMBERS OF
JUSTICE HARRY A, BLACKMUN

November 30, 1976

/

MEMORANDUM TO THE CONFERENCE

Re: No. 74-1263 - Brewer v. Williams

I shall try a dissent in this case.

oz




MEMORANDUM

TO: Mr. Justice Powell DATE:  November 30, 1976
FROM: Gene Comey

-

have
As I indicated yesterday, I kf% two major concerns with

the opinion in Brewer v. Williams. First, I believe the draft
places undue emphasis on the existence of the agreemeﬁf. It
should be sufficient that Williams asserted his right to counsel,
‘and T would not want the lower courts to think that the agreement
was dispositive. Second, I believe that the draft might be read-
to indicate a view of the circumstances necessary to show waiver
in a post-indictment case where there had been no assertion of
counsel. I, for one, would prefer to leave fimnal resolution

of that issue to another case. I have therefore drafted some
proposed changes on pag%ilZ, i7. I am not particularly wedded
to the language, and if you agree with the changes, both you and
Justice Stewart might wish to tinker with the wording. I could

find no less delicate way to alter page 12.

58



As 1 indicated yésterday, I had two major concerns with

the opinion in Brewer v. Williamg. First, I believe the draft

places undue emphasis on the existence of the agreement. It

should be sufficient that Williams asserted his right to counsel,
J and I would not want the lower courts to think that the agreement

was dispositive. Second, I believe that the draft might be read

to indicate a view of the circumstances necesbéry to show waiver

in a post-indictment case where there had been no assertion of

counsel. I, for one, would prefer to leave final resolution

of that issue to another case. I have therefore drafted some

proposed changes on page 12, 17. 1 am not particularly wedded

to the lénguage, and if you agree with thé changes, both you and

Justice Stewart might wish to tinker wi#h the wording. I could

find no less delicate way to alter page 12.




Supreme Gonrt of the Hnited States
Washington, D. C. 20543

CHAMBERS OF
JUSTICE POTTER STEWART

November 30, 1976

No. 74-1263, Brewer v. Williams

Dear Lewis,

The changes indicated on pages 12, 16, and 17
are in response to your suggestions. Please let me know at
your convenience if they satisfactorily meet your concerns.
If so, I shall recirculate the opinion with these changes made
by the printer with the hope that those who have already
joined the opinion will find the changes acceptable.

Sincerely yours,

Mr. Justice Powell
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Dear Potter:

The changes accompanying your note of 11/30 do

meet my concerns.
Many thanks.

Sincerely,

Mr. Justice Stewart

1lfp/ss
bc: Gene

Please check the changes in the next draft and I will
do a join note.

L.F.P., Jr.
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. \
Robert Anthony Williams,
"~ aka Anthony Erthel
Williams,

On Writr of Certiorari tg the
United States Court of Ap-
peals for the Eighth Circuit, .

[November —, 1876]

Mg JUSTICE STEWART dehvered the opiniou of the Court.

An Towa trial jury found the respondent Robert Wﬂhams,
gullty of murder. The judgment of conviction was affirmed
in the Towa Supreme Court by a closely divided vote. In
a subsequent habeas cofpus proceeding a federal - district
court ruled that under the United States Constitution Wil-

1976

Jiams is entitled to a new trial, and a divided Court of

Appeals for the Eighth Circuit agreed. The question before
4is is whether the District Court and the Court of Appeals
wWere Wrong,

. | I - .

On ‘the afternoon of December 24, 1968, a 10-year-old
#irl named Pamela Powers. went with her family to the
'YMCA i Des Moines, Towa, to watch a wrestling tourna~
ment in which her brother was participating. When she
failed to return from a trip to the washroom, a search for
‘her began. The search was unsuceessful. ‘

Robert Williams, who had recently escaped from a- mental
~hospital, was ‘a resident of the YMCA. ‘Soon after -the
girl’s disappearance Williams was seen in the YMCA
Jobby earrying some clothing and a large bundle wrappget
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ina blanket. He obtained he]p from a 14-year-old boy In.
. opening the street door of the YMCA and the door to

his automobile parked outside. When Williams placed
the bundle in the front seat of his car the “boy “saw two
legs in it and they were gkinny and white.” Before anyone
could see what was in the bundle Williams drove’ away.
His abandoned car was found the following day in Daven-
port, Iowa, roughly 160 miles east of Des Moines. A warrant

. was then issued i in Des Moines for his arrest on a charge of
- abduction.

On the morning of December 26, a Des Momes lawyer
named Henry McKnight 'went to the Des Moines police sta-
tion and informed the officers present that he had just received

" a long distance. call from Williams, and that he had advised -
" Williams to turn himself in to the Davenport police. Wil-
~ liams did surrender that morning to the police in Davenport,

and they booked him on the charge specified in the arrest
warrant and gave hiin the warnings required by Miranda
v. Arizona, 384 U, §, 436. The Davenport police then tele-
phoned their counterparts in Des Moines to inform them
that Williams had surrendered. - McKnight, the lawyer, was
still at the Des Moines police headquarters, and Williams

- " conversed with McKnight on the telephone. In the presence-
" of the Des Moines Chief of Police and a Police Detective

named Leaming, ‘McKnight advised Williams that Des
Moines police -officers would be driving to Davenport to
pick Him up, that the officers would not inferrogate him
or mistreat him, and that Williams was not to talk to the
officers about Pamela Powers until after consulting with
MecKnight upon his return to Des Moines. As a result of
these conversations, it was agreed between MecKnight and
the Des Moines police officials that Detective Leaming and
a fellow officer would drive to Davenport to pick up Williams,

* that they would bring him directly back to Des Moines,
~and ‘that they would: not question him. during .the -trip,
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In the meantime Williams was arraigned before a 1udg@ :
" in Davenport on the outsf,andlr}g arrest warrant. The judge
advised him of his Mirandae rights and committed him to jail.
Before leaving the courtroom, Williams conferred with a
lawyer named Kelly, who advised him not to make any
statements until consulting with McKnight back in Des
Moines.

Detective Leaming-and his fellow officer arrived in Daven-
port about noon to pick up Williams and return him to
Des Moines. Soon after their arrival they met with Williams
and Kelly, who, they 'understood, was acting as Williams'
lawyer. Detective 'L-Paming repeated the Miranda warnings,
and told Williams: '

11

. . . we both know that you're bemg represented here
by Mr. Kelly and you're being. represented by Mr.

McKnight in Des Moines, and . . . I want you to re-
member this because we'll be v151t,1ng between here and
Des Momes

Williams then conferred- again with Kelly alone, and after
this conference Kelly reiterated to Detective Leaming that
. ‘Williams was not to be questioned about the disappesrance
of Pamela Powers until after he had consulted with Me-
Knight back in Des Moines. When Leaming expressed
some reservations, Kelly. firmly stated that the agreement
with MeKnight was to be carried out—that there was to
be no interrogation of Williams during the automobile jour-
ney to Des Moines. Kelly was denied permission to ride
in the police car back to Des Moines with Williams and
the two officers. -

‘The two Detectives, with Williams in their charge, then '
set out on the 160-mile’ drive. At no time during the trip
did Williams express a willingness to be interrogated in the
absence of -an attorney. Instead, he stated several times
that “[w]hen 1 get to Des Moines and see Mr. McKnight,
T am going to tell you the whole story.” Detective Leaming
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knew that. Wﬂllams was a. former mentai patient, and knew

also that he was deeply rehglous
The Detective and his prisoner soon embarked on a wide-

ranging éonversation covering a variety of topies, including

‘the subject of religion. Then, not long after leaving Daven-
port and reaching the nterstate highway, Detective Leaming
delivered what_has been referred to in ‘the briefs and oral

;arguments as the “Christian burial speech.” Addressing

‘Williams as “Reverend,” the Detective said:

“I want to give you something to think about while
we're tra\fehng down the road. . Number one, I
want you to observe the weather conditions, it's raining,
it’s sleeting, it’s freezing, driving is very treacherous,
- visibility is poor, it's going to be dark early this evening.
"They are predicting several inches. of snow for tonight,
and I feel that you yourself are the only person that
knows where this Little girl’s body is, that you yourself
have only been there once, and if you get a snow on
top of it you yourself may be unable to find it. And,
sinee we will be going right past the area on the way into

Des Moines, T feel that we could stop and locate the - '

body, that the parents of this little girl should be en-
titled to a Christian burial for the little girl who was
snatched away from them on Christmas Eve and mur-
~dered. And T feel we should stop and locate it on the
way in rather than waiting until morning and trying to
come back out after a snow storm and possibly not being
able to find it at all.”
Williams asked Detective Leaming why he thought their
route to Des Moines would be taking them past the girl’s
body, and Leaming responded that he knew the body was

‘in the area of Mitchellville—a town they would be passing
‘on the way to Des Moines? Leaming then stated: “I do

1 The fact of the matfer, _of course, was that Defective Leaming
Trossessed no bll(.h knowledge,
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not want you to answer me. 1 don’t want to discuss ib
further. Just think about it as we’re riding down the road.”

As the car approached Grinnell, a town approximately
100 miles west of Davenport, Williams asked whether. the
police had found the vietim's shoes. When Detective
Leaming replied that he was unsure, Williams directed the
officers to & service station where he said he had left the
shoes: a search for them proved unsuccessful. As they con-
tinued towards Des Moines, Williams asked whether the
police had found the blanket, and directed the officers to
a.rest area where he said he had disposed of the.blanket.
Nothing was found. " The car continued towards Des Moines,
and. as it approached Mitchellville,. Wllhams said that he
would show the officers where the b_ody was, He then di-
rected the police to the body of Pamela Powers.

Williams was indicted for first-degree murder. Before trial,
his counsel moved to suppress all evidence relating to or
resulting from any statements Williams had made during
the automobile ride from Davenport to Des Moines. " After
an evidentiary hearing the trial judge denied the motion.
He found that “an agreement was made between defense
counsel and the police officials to the effect that the Defend-
ant was not to be questioned on the return trip to Des
Moines,” and that the evidence in question had been elicited
from Williams during “a critical stage in the proceedings
requiring the presence of counsel on his request.” The judge
ruled, however, that Williams had “waived his right to have
an attorney present during the giving of such information.” *

The evidence in question was introduced over ecounsel’s
continuing objection at the subsequent trial. The jury found
Williams guilty of murder, and the judgment of convietion
Was aﬁlrmed by the Iowa Supreme Court, a bare ma:orltv

2The opinion of the mal court: denying Wlllmms motm to Silp[)reﬁfp

is unreported.
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of whose members agreed with the trial court that Williams
had “waived his right to the presence of his counsel” on

the: antomobile ride from' Davenport to Des Moines. State -
v. Williams, 182 N. W. 2d 396, 402. The four disseniing

. justices expressed. the view that “when counsel and police

have agreed defendant is not to be questioned until counsel
is present and defendant has been advised not to talk and
repeatedly has stated he will tell the whole story after he
talks with counsel, the state should be required to make
a stronger showing of intentional voluntary . waiver than '
was made here.”” Id., at 408. :
Williams then petltloned for a writ of habeas corpus in
the United States District Court for the Southern District
of Towa. Counsel for the State and for Williams stipulated
“that the case would be submitted on the record of facts
and proceedings in the trial court, without taking of further
testimony.” The District Court made findings of fact as.
summarized above, and concluded as a matter of Jlaw that
the evidence in question had been wrongly admitted at.
Williams’ trial. This eonclusion was based on three alterna-
tive and independent grounds: (1) that Williams had heen
denied his constitutional right to the assistance of counsel;
(2) that he had been denied the constitutional protections. de-.
fined by this Court’s decisions in Escobedo v. fllnots, 378 U. 8.
478, and Miranda v. Arizona, 384 U. S. 436; and (3) that in
any event, his self-incriminatory statements on the auto-
mobile trip from Davenport to Des Moines had been involun-

- tarily made. Further, the District Court ruled that there

had been no waiver by W1111ams of the constitutional pro--
tections in question. Williams v. Brewer, 375 F. Supp 174.
_ The Court of Appeals for the Kighth Circuit, with one.
judge dissenting, affirmed this judgment, 509 F. 2d 227,
and denied a petition for rehearing en banc. We granted
certiorari to consider the consmtuuonal issues presented, 423:
tl. 8. 1031,
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1I
A
Before turning to those issues, we must consider the peti-

tioner’s threshold claim that the District Court disregarded
the provisions of 28 U, 8. C. § 2254 (d) in making its findings
of fact in this case. That statute, which codifies most of
the criteria ‘set out in Townsend v, Sain, 372 U. 8. 293,
provides that, ‘subject, to enumerated exceptions, federa,l
habeas corpus courts shall accept as correct the factual de-
terminations made by the courts of the States.’

=3

# Title 28, United Staies Code, § 2254 (d) provides:

“{d) In any proeeeding instituted in a Federal court by an applica-
iion for a writ of habeas corpus by a person in custody pursuant to the
judgment. of a bmte caurt, a determination after a hearing on the merits
of a factual issué, made by a State court of competent ]LlI'lbdl(‘,TIO!] in a
proceeding to which the applicant. for the writ and the State or an
officer or agent thereof were parties, evidenced by a written finding.
written opinion, or other reliable and adequate written -indicia, shall . be
presumed 1o be correét, unless the applicant shall establish or it shall
otherwige appear, or the respondent shall admit—

“(1) that the merits of the factual dispute were not resolved in thr
State eourt hearing;

“(2) that the factfinding procedure emploved by the State court was
not adequate to afford a full and fair hearing;

“{3) that the material facts were not adequately developed at the
State court hearing;

“(4) that the State court lacked ]U!‘lbdlct]()ﬂ of the subject: nmtter or
over the person of ithe applicant. in the Stare court proceeding;

“(5) that the applicamt was an mdlcrent and the State court, in
deprivation of his constitutional right, failed to appoint counsel to repre-
sent him in the State court proceeding;

“(6) that the applicant did not receive a full, fair, and adequate
hmring in the State court proceéding; or -

=)

“(7) that the applicant  was otherwise denied due pr()Ct‘sh of law i
the State court proceeding:

“{8) or unless that part of the tecord of the State court proceeding in
which the determination of such factual issue was made, pertinent to a
determination of the sufficiency of the evidence to support such faetual:
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We conclude that there was no disregard of § 2254 (d) in
this ‘case. Although either of the parties might well have
requested an evidentiary hearing in the federal habeas corpus
proceedings, Townsend v. Sain, supra, at 322, they both
instead voluntarily agreed in advance that the federal court
should decide the case on the record made in the courts
of the State. In so proceeding, the District Court inade no

findings of fact in conflict with those of the lowa courts.”

The Distriet Court did make some additional findings of
fact based upon its examination of the state court record,
among them the findings that Kelly, the Davenport lawyer,
had requested permission to ride in-the police ear from
Davenport to-Des Moines and that Detective Leaming had
refused this request. But the additional findings were' con-

scientiously and carefully explained by the District Court, -

375 F. Supp., at 175-176, and were reviewed and approved by

" the Court.of Appeals, which expressly held that “the District -

Court correctly applied 28 U. S. C. §2254 in-its resolution
of the disputed evidentiary facts, and that the facts as found
by the District Court had substantial basis in the record,

509 F. 2d, at 230-231. The strictures of 28 U. 5. C. § 2254 (d) '

require no-more.*

determination, is produced as provided for hereinafter, and the Federal
eourt on a consideration of such part of the record as a whole concludes
that such factual determination is nct fairly supported by the record:
“And in an evidentiary hearing in the proceeding in the Federal couit,
when due proof of such fuctual determination has been made, unless the
existence of one or more of the circumstances respectively set forth in
paragraphs mumbered (1) to (7}, inchwsive, s shown by the applieant,
wotherwise appedrs, or iz admitted By the rmpondvut or unless the court,
concludes pursuant fo' the provisions of paragraph numbered (8} that
‘the record in the State court proceeding, eonsidered as a whole, does not.
Jairly support- such factual determination, the burden shall rest upon
the applieant to establish by convineing 0v1dcnco that the fm.tual deter-
mination by the State coart: was erroneous.’

+ Whether Williams waived his constitutional rights was not, of course,

a question of fact, but an issue of federal law. See discussign,. at pp,
13-15 of text, infra, o
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B

.. As stated above, the District Court based its judgment .
in this case on three independent grounds. The Court of
Appeals appears to have affirmed the judgment on two of
those grounds® We have concluded that only one of them
need be considered here. .

Specifically, there is no need to review in this case the .
doctrine of Miranda v. Arizona, supra, a doctrine designed
to secure the constitutional privilege against compulsory self-
inerimination, Michigan v, Tucker, 417 U. S. 433, 438-439.
It is equally unnecessary to evaluate the ruling of the Dis-
trict Court that Williams’ self-ineriminating statements were,
indeed, involuntarily made. Cf. Spano v. New York, 360
U. 8. 315. For it is clear that the judgment before us must
in any event be affirmed upon the ground that Williams
was deprived of a different constitutional right—the right
to the assistance of counsel.

This right, guaranteed by the Sixth and Fourteenth Amend.
ments, is indispensable to the fair administration of our
adversary system of criminal justice. Its vital need at the
pretrial stage has perhaps nowhere been more succinetly
explained than in Mr. Justice Sutherland’s memorable words
for the Court 44 years ago in Powell v. Alabama, 287 U. S.
45, 57: ' -

“[D]uring perhaps the most eritical period of the
proceedings against these defendants, that is to say, from
the time of their arraignment until the beginning of their
trial, when consultation, thoroughgoing investigation and
preparation were vitally important, the defendants did -
not have the aid- of counsel in any real sense, although
they were as much entitled to such aid during that perlod
as at the trial 1tSelf ”

5 The Court of Appeals did not address the Distriet Court’s ruling that
Williams’ statements had been made involuntarily,
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There has occasmnally been a difference of opinion w:bhln
the Court as to the perlpheral scope of this const:tutlonal
right. See Kirby v. Illinous, 406 U. S. 682; Coleman v. Ala-

bama, 399 U. 8.1, But its basic contours, which are Identl-'
cal in state’ and federal contexts, Gideon v, Wamumght o
372 U 8. 335; Argermnger V. Hamlm 407 U. 8. 25, are

too well establ1shed to requlre extensive elaboration here;
Whatever else it may mean, the right to counsel granted by

" the Bixth and Fourteenth’ Amendments means at least that
- & person is entitled to the help of a lawyer at or after

‘the time that judicial proceedings have been initiated against
~ him—“whéther by way of formal charge, prehmmary hear- .

ing, lndlctment 1nf0rmat10n or arraignment.” Kirby. v.

_‘_Illmozs supra, at 689. -Sce Powell v. Alabama, 287 U. 8,

s Johnson v. Zerbst, 304 U 8. 458; Hamilton v Alabmna

'368 U. 8. 52; Gideon v. Wamwnght supra; White v. Mary-

land, 373 U. S 59; M‘asmah v. United States, 377.U. S. 201,
United States v. Wade, 388 U. S. 218; Gilbert v. C’alzfornm,
388 U. 8. 263 Coleman v. Alabama, supm ‘

There can be no doubt in the present case that judl-

cial proceedings had been initiated agamst Williams: before -
the start of the automobile ride from Davenport. to Des.

Moines. A warrant had been issued for his arrest he had
been arraigned on that warrant before a judge in’a Daven:

. port courtroom, and he had been committed by the court

to' confinement in jail. The ' State does not contend
otherwise, -

There can 'bé no serious doubt, either, that Detedtive‘

Leaming deliberately and designedly set out to elicit infor-
mation from Williams just as surely as—and perhaps more

“effectively than—if he had formally interrogated him. De- -

tective Leaming was fully aware before departing for Des

Moines that Williams was being represented' in Davenport.
by Kelly and in Des Moines by McKnight. Yet he pur-
posely 'sought during Williams’ isolation from his lawyers: $o
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obtain as much ineriminating information as possible. In-
deed, Detective Leaming conceded as much when he testified
at Williams’ trial: :
 “Q. In fact, Captain, whether he was a mental patient
or not, you were trying to get all the information you
could before he got to his lawyer, weren’t you?
" “A. T was sure hoping to find out where that little
girl was yes, sir. ‘
“Q. Well, Tl put it this way: You was hoping to get
all the information you could before Williams got-back
to McKnight, weren’t you?
“A. Yes, sir.”®

The state courts clearly proceeded upon the hypothesis -
that Detective Leaming’s “Christian burial speech” had
been tantamount to interrogation. Both courts recognized
that Williams had been entitled to the assistance of counsel
at the time he made the incriminating statements.’ Yet no
such constitutional protection would have come into play if
there had been no interrogation.

The circumstances of this case are thus constitutionally

¢ Coungel for the State, in the course of oral argument in this Court,
acknowledged that the “Christian burial speech” was tantamount to
interrogation; '

“Q: But isn’t the point, Mr. Attorney General, what you indicated
carlier, and that is that the officer wanted to elicitt information from
Witliamg— : '

“A: Yes, sir. ) ) :

“Q: —by whatever fechniques he used, I would suppose a lawyer woul
ronsider that he were pursuing interrogation, :

“A: It is, but it was very brief.” - _

? The Towa trial court expressly acknowledged Williams® “right to have
an aftorney present during the giving of such information.” Seé p. 5,
supra. “The lowa Supreme Court also expressly acknowledged Williams’
right to the presence of his counsel” Bee pp. 56, supra.
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indistinguishable from those presented in Massiah v. United
States, supra. The petitioner in that case was indicted for

violating the federal narcotics law. He retained a lawyer, .
. pleaded not guilty, and was released on bail. While he was
" free on bail a federal agent succeeded by surreptitious means

in listening to incriminating statements made by him. Evi-
dence of these statements was introduced against the peti-
tioner at his trial, and he was convicted. This Court re-

. versed the conviction, holding “that the petitioner was denied

the basic protections of that guarantee [the right to counsel]

. when there was used against him at his trial evidence of his

own incriminating words, which federal agents had deliber-
ately solicited from him after he had been indicted and in
the absence of his counsel.” 377 U. 8., at 206.

That the ineriminating statements were elicited surrepti-

“tiously in the Massiah case, and otherwise here, is constitu-

tionally irrelevant. See ibid.; McLeod v. Ohio, 381 U. 8.

'356; United States v. Crisp, 435 F. 2d 354, 358 (CAT);

United States ex rel. O’Connor v. New Jersey, 405 F. 2d 632,
636 (CAR3): Hancock v. White, 378 F. 2d 479 (CA1).
ather, the clear rule of Massiah is that once adversary pro-
‘ceedings have commenced against an individual, he has a
right to legal ’represeni;ation when the government inter-

rogates him® 1t thus requires no wooden or technical ap-

# The only other significant factual difference between the present case
‘aned Massiah is that here the police had agreed that they would not inter-
rogate Williams in the absence of his counsel. This eircumstance plainly

provides the State with no argument for distinguishing away the protee-.

tion afforded hy Massiah,

It is argued that thiz sgreement may not have been an enforceable
one. But we deal here not with notions of offer, acceptance, consideration,,

or other concepts of the law of contracts. We deal with constitutional
law. And every court that has looked at this case has found an “agree-

ment” in the sense of . commitment made by the Des Moines police.
officers that Williams would not be questioned about Pamela Powers in

the absence of his counsel.
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plication of the Massiah doctrine to conclude that Williams
was entitled to.'the assistance of counsel guaranteed to him
by the Sixth and Fourteenth Amendments "

111
The Towa courts recognized that Williams had been denied
the constitutional right to the assistance of counsel.” They
held, however, that he had waived that right during the
course of the automobile trip from Davenport to Des Moines.

The state trial court explained its determination of walver
as follows:

“The time element involved on the trip, the general
circumstances of it, and more importantly the absence
on the Defendant’s part of any assertion of his right or
desire not to give information absent the presence.of
his attorney, are the main foundations for the Court’s
conclusion that he voluntarily waived such right.”

In its lengthy opinion affirming this determination, the
Towa Supreme Court applied ‘“the totality-of-circumstances
test for-a showing of waiver of constitutionally-protected
rights in the absence of an express waiver,” and concluded “that
evidence of the time element involved on the trip, the gen-
eral circumstances of it, and the absence of any request or
expressed desire for the aid of counsel before or at the
time of giving information, were sufficient to sustain a con-
clusion that defendant did waive his eonstitutional rights
as alleged.” 182 N. W, 2d, at 402,

In the federal habeas corpus proceeding the District Court,
believing that the issue of waiver was not one of fact but
of federal law, held that the Iowa courts had “applied the
wrong constitutional standards” in ruling that Williams had
walved the protections that were his under the Constitution,
375 F. Supp., at 182. The court held “that it is the gov-

?Ree n, 7, supro.




7@1?53---0?1'\:10&

"BREWER. v WILL]AMS

- ernment whmh bears a heavy burden .. . but that is the
_ burden which explicitly was placed on [Williams] by the
‘'state courts,” [bid. (emphasis in original). After carefully 2
reviewing the evidence, the District Court concluded

- E[U ]nder the proper standards for determmmg waiver,
‘there simply is no evidence to support a walver. . .

[T]here i is no affirmative 111d10at10n . that [W]lhamS1
- did waive his righté ... [Tlhe sta,te courts’ emphasis
on the absence of a dem&nd for counsel was not only
legally - inappropriate, but factually unsupportable as
well; since Detective Leaming  himself testified that

[Williams], on several oceasions during the trip, indi- |
cated that he would talk after he saw Mr. MeKnight.

“Both these statements: and Mr. Kelly’s statement to

Detective Leaming that [Williams] would talk only -

after seeing Mr. McKnight in Des Moines cert,aln]y were

assertions of {William’s] ‘right or desire not to give in-

formation absent the presence of his attorney . . . .~

.. Moreover, the statements were obtained only after Detec-

tive Léaming’s use of psychology on a person whom he
knew to be deeply rehgl(JUS and an escapee from a mental
‘hospital—-with ‘the specific intent to elicit ‘incriminating

statements. In the face-of this evidence, the State has
_ produced no aﬁirmatlve ev1dence whatsoever to support
its elaim of waiver, and, a fortlori it cannot be said that. .

" the State has met its ‘heavy burden’ of showing a know-

ing and mtelhgent waiver of .’ Slxth Amendment )

rights.” 375 F. Eaupp at 182483 ( emphaSIS n ongma])
The Court of Appeals approved the reasoning of the DIS-‘

“trict Court:

“A review -of the xecord here . . . discloses no facts

to support the conclusion of the state court that [Wil- -

liams] had waived his constitutional rights other tha,n
bhat [he] had inade mcrlmmatmg statements . .,
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The District Court here properly concluded that an
incorrect constitutional standard had been applied by
the state court in determining the issue of waiver. .

“IT1his court recently held that an accused can volun-
tarily, knowingly and intelligently waive his right to have
counsel present at an interrogation after counsel has been
appointed, . . . The prosecution, however, has the
weighty obligation to show that the waiver was know-
ingly and intelligently made. We quite agree with Judge
Hanson that the state here failed to so show.” 500 F.
2d, at 233.

The District Court and the Court of Appeals were correct
in the view that the guestion of waiver was not a question
of historical fact, but one which, in the words of Mr. Justice
Frankfurter, requires “application of constitutional prineiples
to the facts as found . ... Brown v. Allen, 344 . S. 443,
507 (separate opinion). See Townsend v. Sain, supra, at 308
n. 6, 318; Brookhart v. Janis, 384 U. 8. 1, 4.

The District Court and the Court of Appeals were also
correct in their understanding of the proper standard to be
applied in determining the question of waiver as a matter
of federal constitutional law-—that it was incumbent upon the
State to prove “an intentional relinquishment or abandon-
ment of a known right or privilege.” Johnson v. Zerbst,
supra, at 464. That standard has been reiterated in many
cases. We have said that the right to counsel does not
depend upon a request by the defendant, Carnley v. Cochran,
369 U. 8. 506, 513; cof. Miranda v. Arizona, supra, at 471,
and that courts indulge in every reasonable presumption
against waiver, e. g., Brookhart v. Janis, supra, at 4; Glasser
v. United States, 315 U. 8. 60, 70. "This strict standard ap-
plies equally to an alleged waiver of the right to counsel
whether at trial’ or at a eritical stage of pretrial proeeedings.
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Schneckloth v. Bustamonte, 412 U. 8. 218, 238-240; United
States v. Wade, 388 U. 8. 218, 237, |

We conclude, finally, that the Court of Appeals was cor-
reet in holding that, judged by .these standards, the record
in this case falls far short of sustaining the State’s burden.
It is true that Williams had been informed of and appeared
to understand his right to counsel. But waiver requires not
merely comprehension but relinquishment, and Williams’
consistent reliance upon the advice of counsel in dealing with
the authorities refutes any suggestion that he waived that

right. He consulted McKnight by long distance telephone '

before turning himself in. He spoke with MeKnight by
telephone again shortly after being booked. After he was
arraigned, Williams sought out and obtained legal advice
from Kelly. Williams again consulted with Kelly after De-

™. tective Leaming and his fellow officer arrived in Davenport.

Throughout, Williams was advised not to make any state.

“ ments before seeing McKnight in Des Moines, and was
assured that the police had agreed not to question him.
- His statements while in the car that he would tell the
~ whole story after seeing MeKnight in Des Moines were the
clearest expressions by Williams himself that he desired the
presence of an attorney before any hiterrogation took place.
But even before making these statements, Williams had
e_ﬁ_"ecfively asserted his right to counsel by having secured
attorneys at both ends of the automobile trip, both of
whom, acting as his agents, had made clear to the police
that no interrogaiion was to occur during the journey. Wil-
liams knew of that agreement and, particularly in view of
_his consistent reliance on counsel, there is no basis for con-
cluding that he disavowed it.".

VW CE, Michigan v. Mosely, 423 U. 8. 96, 110 n, 2 (WarrE, J., coneur-
Ting in result): .

. . the reasons to keep the lines of communication between the
authorities and the acensed vpen when the accused has chosen to make

i

OW\ v 34 f“ n)
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Despite Williams” express and implicit assertions of his
right to counsel, Detective Leaming proceeded to elicit in- \ GM{‘S 3-; W

eriminating statements from Williams. Leaming did not o
preface this effort by telling Williams that he had a right
to the presence of a lawyer, and made no effort at all
to ascertainn whether Williams wished to relinquish that
right. The ecircumstances of record in this case thus pro-
| vide no reasonable basis for finding that Williams waived

his right to the assistance of counsel.
The Court of Appeals did not hold, nor do we, that under
the circumstances of this case Williams could not, without
notice to counsel, have waived his rights under the Sixth and
“ Fourteenth Amendments.® It only held, as do we, that he
did not.
v

The crime of which Williams was convicted was senseless
and brutal calling for swift and energetic action by the
police to apprehend the perpetrator and gather evidence with
which he could be convicted. No mission of law enforeement
officials is more important. Yet [d]isinterested zeal for
the public good does not assure either wisdom or right in
the methods it pursues.” Haley v. Ohio, 332 U. 8. 596, 605

-his own decisions are not present when he indieates instead that he wishes

legal advice with respect thereto. The authorities may then communicate ‘ .
with him through an attomey. More to the point, the aceused having
expressed his own view that he is not competent 1o deal with the authori-
ties without legal advice, a later decision at the authorities’ insistence to
make a statement without counsel’s presence may properly be viewed
with skepticism.”

1 Compare, . g., United States v. Springer, 460 F. 2d 1344, 1350
(CAT)Y; Wilson v. United States, 398 F. 2d 331 (CA35); Coughlan v.
United States, 391 F. 2d 371 (CA9}, with, e. ¢.. United States v. Thomas,
474 F. 2d 110, 112 (CAL0Y: (mited States v. Springer, supra, at 1354~
1355 (Srevens, J., dissenting}; United States ex rel. Magoon ¥. Reinche,
416 F. 2d 69, aff’g 304 F. Supp. 1014 (Conn.), Cf. United States v,
Pheaster, — F, 2d — (CAD},
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(Frankfurter J concprrmg in the judgment). Although we
do not 11ght1y arﬁirm the issuance of a writ of habeas corpus in
this' case, 'so clear a Vlolat10n of the Sixth and Fourteenth
Amendments as here occurred cannot be condoqed The pres-
sures on state ‘executive and. ]udlcxal oﬂicers charged w1th the
admlms‘omtwn of the crmnnal law are great espeﬁlally when
the erime is murder and the v;ctlm 8 small child: But 1§,
is premsely the predmtablhty of those pressures that makﬂs,
lmperatlve -3 resolute loya,lty to the guarantees that . t,ha
Constltut.lon extends to us all oo T =
The J‘udg;ment s o

, !

*The Court of Appeal:: syspended the i sy ange of the wrlt of habeas
‘eorpus for 60 dél}b to al]qw ah a portumt\ for a new “rial, and f‘l}l'thBI'
‘suspended its isguance pendmg dupo,:mon of thp Sr"l.fﬂb petmon for a

writ of certmran in thyg Court ‘In q,ﬁirmmg Yhﬁ ]udgmem of t]m Cqurt .

‘of Appea!s, we further sugpend thp issuance of the wnt of I'elEflne fmm
custody for 60 days-frgm }hls date ta aliow the \tate of Towd an opjpot
tumty ‘to 1mp1at;> A new tnal, and ;udgmgam, w|1J ‘e entr*red aacprclug,gly,

Aﬁwdﬁ




Supreme Court of the Pnited States
- Washington, B. §. 205%3 \/

JUSTICE WILLIAM H. REHNQUIST

December 2, 1976

Re: No. 74-1263 - Brewer v. Williams

Dear Harry:

Please join me in your dissenting opinion in this

case.

Sincerely,

Mr. Justice Blackmun

Copies to the Conference




December 3, 1976

i

No. 74-1263 Brewer v;'Williams

Deér Potter:
Please join me.

Sincerely,

Mr. Justice Stewart

1fp/ss

cc: The Conference
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Supreme Qourt of the Hnited Stutes
Washington, B. € 20543

CHAMBERS OF
JUSTICE BYRON R.WHITE

- December 9, 1976

Re:' No. 74-1263 — Brewer v. Williams

Dear Potter:

I am in the process of writing separately
in this case.

Sincerely yours,
V‘——/

Mr. Justice Stewart

Copies to the Conference




| Supreme Gonrt of the Vnited Siutes
Paslingten, B. ¢, 20543

CHAMBERS OF
THE CHIEF JUSTICE

December 16, 1976

Re: 74-1263 Lou V. Brewer v. Robert Anthony Williams

MEMORANDUM TO THE CONFERENCE:

I will await Byron's "separate' writing before
I come to rest.

Regards,




Supreme Canrt of Hye Hodted States
Washington, B. d. 20543

CHAMBERS ©F

THE CHIEF JUSTICE

December -29, 1976
Re: 74-1263 - Brewer v. Williams

MEMORANDUM TO THE CONFERENCE:

I will, of course, join both Byron's and Harry's dissents.
I will probably write separately focusing on the utter
irrationality of fulfilling Cardozo's half-century old
prophecy ~— which he really made in jest -- that some day
some court would carry the Suppression Rule to the absurd
extent of suppressing evidence of a murder victim's body.

That is what is being done here -- at least as of now. My
thrust will be that even accepting the view of the present
majority -- which I do not -- it is indeed irrational for
the Court to extend the Suppression Rule to exclude evidence
of the body. This means I would move toward the English
Judges' Rules reserving exclusion for egregious police
misconduct. I am sure no one would be so bold as to say

the police conduct here was "egregious."

Regards,




Supreme Gonrt of the Hnited Stutes
Wazhington, B, . 20543 f’ljj\
JUST!C;:A(:T'IE"ER STEWART

January 3, 1977

No. 76-1263, Brewer v. Williams

Dear Lewis,

I have in mind adding the enclosed footnote at an
appropriate place in this opinion. Before sending it to the
printer, however, I would be interested in your views.

Sincerely yours,
78

Mr. Justice Powell




No. 76-1263
Brewer v. Williams
PS court op

-

A

The District Court stated ;chat‘its decision "does not
touch upon the issue of what evidence, 1f é.ny, béyond the incrim-
inating statements themselves must be excluded as 'fruit of the
poisonous tree.' " 375 F. Supp., at 185. We too hﬁve no
occasion to address this issue, and in the present posture of the

case there is no basis for the view of our dissenting Brethren,

post, at .. (WHITE, J., dissenting); id., at
(BLACKMUN, J., dissenting), that any attempt to retry the re-
spondent would probably be futile. In the event that a retrial is
instituted, it will be for the state courts in the first instance to
determine whether particular items of evidence may be admit-

ted. Ci. Killough v. United States, 336 F.2d 929.




January 6, 1977

No. 74-1263 Brewer v. Williams

Dear Potter:
| Here is a first draft of a possible

concurring opinion, written on the assumption that
the Chief Justice writes a dissent along the lines of
his recent discussion with me.

If the Chief Justice does not bring Stone v.
Pcwell into this case, I would consider omitting the
last paragraph of this draft.

In any eveat, I would welcome ybur views.

Sincerely,

Mr. Justice Stewart

LFP/lab




Supreme Qourt of the Pnited States
Washingten, B. €. 20543

CHAMBERS OF
JUSTICE WILLIAM H. REHNQUIST

January 13, 1977

Re: No. 74-1263 - Brewer v. Williams

Dear Byron:

Please add my name to your dissent in this case,
revised as indicated by your letter of January 13th.

Sincerely, (\Nd/

N

Mr. Justice White

Copies to the Conference




. Supreme Qourt of the Pnited ,%iaie’
Rlashington, B. G 20543

CHAMBERS OF
JUSTICE HARRY A. BLACKMUN

January 13, 1977

Re: No. 74-1263 - Brewer v. Williams

Dear Byron:

Please add my name to your dissent revised as indi-
cated in your letter to me of today.

Sincerely,

o

Mr., Justice White

cc: The Conference
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Supreme Qonrt of Hye Hnited States
Washington, B. (. 20543

CHAMBERS OF { -
JUSTICE BYRON R. WHITE

January 13, 1977

Re: No. 74-1263 - Brewer v. Williams

Dear Harry:

I am eliminating the last paragraph of
footnote 6 on page 8 and making an appropriate
change on page 9. With that, I wish you would

add my name to your dissent.

Sincerely,

B

Mr. Justice Blackmun

Copies to Conference
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January 3, 1977

No. 74-1263 Brewer v, Williams

Dear Potter:

. As I hope to be away (in Williamsburg) for most of
this week, 1 am asking my Chambers to deliver to you a
draft of my concurring opinion in which 1 have made some

changes in view of the Chief Justice's dissent.

‘ It seems to me that the Chief takes a gqod deal of
"poetic license', both with the record in this case and your
opindon. I assume that you will wish to respond, at least
to some of what he has written. .

As anticipated from what the Chief had said to me in
several conversations, he has relied rather heavily on
Stone v. Powell. He also construes the ''facts' in & way
that would make e good deal of what I said in Stone appear
to be relevant to this case. For these reasons, 1 think it
‘necessary - at least appropriate - for me to file a concurring
opinion, even though I think your opinion covers the situation
very well indeed.

I will welcome, of course, any suggestions you care to
make:.,. I would like to recirculate substantially simultaneously
with your recirculation. Accordingly, you could convey any
suggestions to Gene Comey who will be in touch with me daily.

Sincerely,

Mr. Justice Stewart

1fp/ss
be: Mr. Gene Comey




Supreme Qonrt of the Hnited Stutes
Washingten, B. 4. 20543

CHAMBERS OF -
THE CHIEF JUSTICE

February 10, 1977

Re: 74-1263 - Brewer v, Williams
PERSONAL
Dear Lewis:

I have your concurring opinion and am happy to see that
our views on the exclusionary rule mesh so closely.

Of course the parties could not have invoked Stone v.
Powell, the State did directly attack the applicability
of the exclusionary rule in this case, Brief for
Petitioner, at 31-32, and invoked principles of comity and
federalism in arguing against federal habeas relief. 1Id.,
at 69-73. Moreover, at oral argument Petitioner argued
that Stone should be extended to this case, just as Respon-
dent argued that it should not. Transcript of Oral Argu-
ment, at 26-27; 49-50. Consequently, the exclusionary rule
issue is unquestionably before the Court.

I agree that "[m]any Fifth and Sixth Amendment claims
arise in the context of challenges to the fairness of a
trial or to the integrity of the factfinding process."

As I pointed out in footnote 8, suppression of evidence
will be entirely appropriate in such cases for those

very reasons. But this is not such a case, and we can
hardly justify exclusion of this evidence on any such
basis. Nor can we blink the fact that the evidence sought
to be suppressed in this case seems to me to fit hand in
glove with your own description of why exclusion of evidence
would not be appropriate here were this a Fourth Amendment
case. This evidence is at once the most reliable and most
probative we could conceivably have bearing on Respondent's
guilt or innocence. It is far more probative than a con-
fession due to the objective facts disclosed.




In any event, if, as you say, our intervening decision
in Stone v. Powell makes application of the exclusionary
rule in this case an open question which "should be resolved
only after the implications of such a ruling have been
fully explored," why isn't the proper course to vacate
the judgment of the Court of Appeals and remand the case
for reconsideration in light of Stone? This is consistent
with our longstanding practice in such cases and is a dis-
position which I would happily support.

In vour Arlington Heights opinion we decided a consti-
tutional guestion which was controlled by our intervening
decision in Washington v. Davis without a remand to give the
Court of Appeals an opportunity to reconsider their consti-
tutional holding. Byron took us all to task for our pre-
cipitous action and "failure to follow our usual practice
in this situation of vacating the judgment below and reman-
ding in order to permit the lower court to reconsider
its ruling in light of our intervening decision." Thus,
in Arlington Heights we applied an intervening decision
without hesitation to reach a correct result in the case
before us. 1In the present case you propose not even to
consider application of an intervening case which you seem
to concede may well be controlling. As of now we will
reach what you almost concede may prove to be an incorrect
result in light of existing law.

As you know, Byron, Harry and Bill Rehnquist are on
record as favoring a remand for reconsideration in light of
the voluntariness issue, which the Court of Appeals did not
reach. Your concurrence prompts me to say that if five
would agree, we ought to dispose of the case with a per
curiam order vacating the judgment below and remanding the
case for reconsideration both of the voluntariness issue
and the Stone v. Powell exclusionary question. For me that
would be infinitely preferable to the present proposed
disposition of the case, which is inconclusive.

Regards,

Mr. Justice Powell




February 11, 1977

PERSONAL

No, 74-1263 Brewer v. Williams

Dear Chief:
Thank you for your thoughtful letter of February 10.

Although there may well be merit to your suggestion,
on balance I doubt the wisdom of remanding this case for
reconsideration. I think the 'voluntariness issue' is
before us, as it was before the courts below. I agree with
you that we could - if we wished - remand in view of Stone
v. Powell on the exclusionary rule issue. But this seems
gnwise to me for reasons that I now indicate only in summary

orm.

It took us, as you will recall, some three years to
identify and bring to the Court just the right case to
decide the issue presented in Stone v. Powell. My concurring

.opinion in Bustamonte, which you joined, did not .command a

Court although it precisely foreshadowed our decision in
Stone. o . ; ..

© In order to hold a Court in Stome, I wrote it sharply
focused on the Fourth Amendment and the limit of a Federal
court's proper réview on. habeas corpus of a Fourth Amendment
claim. I do not think a majority of the Court is willing at
this time to extend the Stone line of analysis indiscriminately.
I have misgivings, myself, as to its applicability to the
Sixth Amendment right to counsel. As noted in my concurring
opinion in Brewer, I am inclined to think the answer will turn
on the circumstances in which the right to counsel is
implicated. ' ' :

: Stone v. Powell was essentially a "habeas corpus' case -
rather than an exclusionary rule case. You may recall that
Byron was willing to decide the case favorably to the
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prosecution (the state) on the exclusionary rule issue. That
1s’, he expressed support for the substance of the ALI modifica-
tion of the exclusionary rule. Uander this modification, the
rule would be applied in light of the facts and circumstances.
The question asked, usually, would be whether the police
conduct fairly could be characterized as outrageous or
intentionally violative of constitutional rights as contrasted
with the typical situation of an inadvertent or good faith
violation of the rule. As indicated in my concurring opinion
in Brown v. Elligg%g (and in my current opinioniin Brewer),

I would join in this type of modification of the exclusionary
rule.  This would be applicable to the original trial, and
would not be limited - as Stone was - to habeas corpus review.

.. But Brewer v. Williams, at least as I view it, is a
poor vehicle for modifying the exclusionary rule. I would
have difficulty defending the police conduct, although I
appreciate that you and others have a different view.

I would let Brewer v. Williams come down as written,
with the various concurring and dissenting opinions. As my
concurrence makes clear, the case is highly fact specific.

. There is little difference among us as to the applicable
principle. It will anot foreclose our considering a modifica-
tion of the exclusionary rule in a more appropriate case.
Wh:gisuch a case arises, I think you will find me a congenial
spirit, . _ .

Sincerely,

The Chief Justice

1fp/ss
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To: Mr. Justice Powell
From: Gene Comey
Re: No. 74-1263 Brewer v. Williams

I have checked the transcript of oral argument
to see whether there was any extended discussion of

the applicability of the Stone v. Powell rationale to

this case. The relevant transcript pages were cited
in the Chief Justice's most recent letter to you in
this case, and I think it fair to say that the issue
was not '"argued" in any meaningful sense.

To begin with, the issue was raised by Justice

Blackmun:

QUESTION: Mr. Turner, may I ask you a
question? Your brief, of course, was filed
in February, before our decision in Stone v.
Powell came down. This is a habeas action,
as it comes here. Have you given any con-
sideration as to whether the underlying
philosophy of Stone v. Powell would have
application here?

MR. TURNER: Yes, sir, I think it would.
In Stone v. Powell, you have -- that was a
Fourth Amendment case, and I think Mr. Chief
Justice Burger noted that there there was a
strong circumstancial probability of reli-
ability, when you find the goods or the body
or something in a search. And here there is
a strong circumstancial probability of
reliability in his statement, and the honesty
and truth of his statement, when he took the
police to the body. And I think here, where
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there has been a full hearing and these
; rights have been adjudicated by the trial
' court, that the trial court and the Supreme
Court of Iowa are at least in as good a
position to make the decision, as would be
Judge Hanson or would be the Federal Circuit
Court of Appeals, and that therefore Stone v.
Powell should be extended here, and that this
case should be denied on that ground alone.
But then, of course, we ask here that the
Court overturn its decisions in the Miranda
case, that you can't use psychological ploys
or subtle interrogation or cajolery. We
would think that the historical basis of
) the Miranda case, of the Fifth Amendment
privilege against self-incrimination was not
that type of conduct.

Thank you.

I can hardly find the state's answer to Mr. Justice
Etackmun's ¢
Blackmun's question of much help in determining the full

implications of an extension of the Stone rationale.

The Chief Justice also cites a portion of the
transcript at which counsel for Williams discusses the
Stone issue:

MR, BARTELS: In the few minutes I have left,
I thought I perhaps should address a question
that was raised by Mr. Justice Blackmun earlier
in my opponents' argument, and that is the
applicability of the Stone and Rice cases to
this particular case.

I think the simplest answer to the question
is that issue has never been raised here. It
was never ralsed below. It was not presented
in the petition for certiorari. It was not
addressed in the petitioner's brief on the
merits, and it was not even --
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QUESTION: It might be because Stone
comes down too strong on --

MR. BARTELS: Your Honor, I think the
issue could have been raised, as it was by
the litigants in the Stone case. But more
significantly, I think, Your Honor, even
in the reply brief that was filed last week,
there was certainly no mention of this issue
by the state.

QUESTION: What would you have to say
about Stone v. Powell? Would you think that
would control here?

MR. BARTELS: No, Your Honor.
QUESTION: Tell us why.

MR. BARTELS: Well, Your Honor, I think
that the rationale in those cases was pretty
carefully limited to the purposes of the
Fourth Amendment exclusionary rule, and I
think thils Court has recognized that there
are rather different purposes behind that
exclusionary rule than, for example, the
protection of the right to counsel that is
involved in this case. For the Court to
apply Stone and Rice in this case would be
a tremendous expansion of the Stone and
Rice, well beyond the rationale 1 think that
the Court offered in that case, which basically
related to the pure1¥ rationale of the Fourth
Amendment, and I don't think we have that here,
particularly with regard to the Sixth Amendment
undertones of the case.

Again, the "argument" is not at all helpful.

I suggest that we add, 1f necessary, a footnote
along the following lines at that point of your opinion
which states that the issue was neither briefed nor

argued:
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h ~ The state's reply brief, which was filed on

:; September 29, 1976 -- several months after our decision

in Stone was announced -- makes no mention of the possible

applicability of the Stone rationale to this case. More-

over, at oral argument counsel for the state addressed

; the Stone issue only dfter being asked whether he had

N given any consideration to the matter. Tr. of Oral Arg.,
at 26-27. The essence of his brief reply was that Stoune

| "should be extended here,'" id., at 27, an answer which

J Qggégggiy indicates an awareness that Stone is technically

not'dispositive of this case. The only other discussion

i of the issue at oral argument came when counsel for

Williams addressed the question that had been raised

earlier during the state's presentation. Again, counsel's

consideration of the issue was brief, noting primarily

that application of Stone to this case would be a

"tremendous expansion' and 'well beyond the rationale"

offered in Stone.

W
) In sum, there is no meaningful sense in which it
can be said that the issue was "argued" in this case.
|




. Supreme Qonrt of the Pnited §tag
Washingtow, B. €. 205%3

CHAMBERS OF
JUSTICE HARRY A. BLACKMUN Februanf 22, 1977

MEMORANDUM TO THE CONFERENCE

Wy:s' Re: No. 74-1263 - Brewer v, Williams

In view of John's utilization of the Charles Dickens' refer-
ence (Mathews v. Goldfarb, concurring opinion, p. 7, n. 9), I see
no purpose in its double use in substantially contemporaneous cases.
Therefore, I am eliminating the very last sentence of my dissenting
opinion in Brewer v. Williams and, as well, footnote 4 on page 4.

The Chief Justice, accordingly, may wish to change his ref-
erence to me in the final sentence of his own dissenting opinion in

Brewer. ]z/ L A .




. Supreme Qomret of the Puited :%Shags
Washington, B. . 20543

CHAMBERS OF
JUSTICE HARRY A. BLACKMUN February 22, 1917

MEMORANDUM TO THE CONFERENCE

Re: No. 74-1263 - Brewer v. Williams

In view of John's utilization of the Charles Dickens' refer-
ence (Mathews v. Goldfarb, concurring opinion, p. 7, n. 9), I see
no purpose in its double use in substantially contemporaneous cases.
Therefore, I am eliminating the very last sentence of my dissenting
opinion in Brewer v, Williams and, as well, footnote 4 on page 4.

The Chief Justice, accordingly, may wish to change his ref-
erence to me in the final sentence of his own dissenting opinion in

}Jﬁ&d

Brewer.
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In discussing the exclusionary rule, the dissenting

-opinion of The Chief Justice refers to Stone v. Powell,

. U. S. 5 decided last Term., In that case, we

held that a federal court need not apply the exclusionary

rule oﬁ habeas corpus review of a Fourth Amendment claim
 absent a showing that the state prisoner was dénied an

opportunity fo;-a fﬁll and fair litigation of that claim

| 2/ |

at trial,and on direct review. We emphasized that

Fourth Amendment claims do not "impugn the integrity of

the fébtAfiﬁding process or challenge evidence as inherently

' and we expressly recognized that Fourth

unreliable,’
Amendmén; violations_thus "differ in kind from denials
of Fifthlor Sixth Aﬁendment rights." Id., at ___ . The
applicability of the rationaierf Stone in the Fifth and
Sixth Amendment contexf raises a number of unresolved
issues, since many Fifth and Sixth Amendment claims arise

in the context of_challenges'to the fairness of a trial or

to.the integrity of the fact-finding process. Whether the
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:ij Claims of grand jury discrimination are a different
matter. See Casteneda v, Partida, No. 75-1552, decided

. In my view such claims are clearly

controlled by the rationalé of Stone. Like challenges

to the validity of arrests or pre-trial detention, com-
plaints about the composition of the grand jury can have

no bearing on the integrity of the subsequent determination

of guilt at trial.
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March 1, 1977

No. 74-1263 Brewer v, Williams

Dear Chief:

~ As you will note, I have eliminated Part I from my
dissenting opinion in Castaneda. One of my objectives
(though by no means the only one) is to avoid the tension
that you perceive between my suggestion of a remand in that
case, and my lack of enthusiasm for a remand in Brewer.

Despite some surface similarity between the two situa~.
tions, I have felt no tension between my positions. When the
. issue is properly before us, I am confident that a majority
of the Court will agree that recourse to federal habeas corpus

- in the Castaneda situation cennot be allowed in view of Stone
v. Powell,

- On the other hand, as I have noted before, we expressly
. reserved - in the Stone opinion - the applicability of that
decision to the Fifth and Sixth Amendment. My own tentative
view is that Stone may well apply to some, but notall, Fifth
and Sixth Amendment situations. : ‘-

If one wishes to extend Stone to the Sixth Amendment, I
doubt that Brewer is the case to make that effort. Vvhile the
facts (as you forcefully argue) are most persuasive in terms
of the crime and the finding of the body, these may well be
counterbalanced by the agreement made by the police that they
violated. 1 would have some difficulty concluding that the
police conduct in Brewer came within the formulation I outlined
in Brown v. Wllinois.

In short, I am confident that Stone v. Powell would be

viewed as a controlling precedent with respect to Castaneda.
I have no such confidence - even as to myself - with respect
to Brewer. In these circumstances, I would prefer to await
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a more favorable gsetting for testing the applicebility of
Stone to the Sixth Amendment.

In saying all of this, I quite understand - and re3pect -
your views to the contrary. _

Sincerely,

The Chief Justice

1fp/ss
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TICES WHITE joareh Brackmun, [ eategorically reject the
absurd notion that the police in this case were guilty of
unconstitutional misconduct, or any conduct justifying the
bizarre result reached by the Court. Apart from a brief
comment on the merits, however, I wish to focus on the
irrationality of applying the increasingly discredited ex-
clusionary rule to this case,

(1)

The Court Concedes Willigms' Disclosures Were Volu?rta,ry

Under well-settled precedents which the Court freely
acknowledges, it is very clear that Williams had made a
valid waiver of his Fifth Amendment right to silence and his
Sixth Amendment right to counsel when he led police to the
child's body. Indeed. even under the Court’s analysis I do
not understand how a contrary conclusion is possible.

The Court purports to apply as the appropriate constitu-
tional waiver standard the familiar “intentional relinquish-
ment or abandonment of a known right or privilege” test
of Johnson v. Zerbst, 304 U. S. 458, 464 (1938). Ante, at 15.
The Court assumeg, without deciding, that Williams’ conduet
and statements were voluntary. Ante, at 9. It concedes,

derer goes free.” People v. Defore, 242 N. Y. 13, 21, 23-24, 150 N. E. 585,
587, 588 (1926).

Perhaps one of the most extraordinary aspecis of this extraordinary
holding iz ante, at 1& n, 12, There the Court siates that it * ‘does not
touch upon the issue of what evid:nee, if any, bevond the incriminating
statements themselves must be exeluded as “fruit of the poisonous tree.” ' *
Unlezs the Court explicitly states ‘c?therwise I would read the Court’s
opinion—and 1 submit the state courts are free to read it—as permitting
Detective Leaming to explain how the body was found so long as he
does not repeat any “incriminating stetements” made by Williams. To

L]
send thiz case hack with intimations that a new trial iz a realistie
pessibility withont elarifving this point westd—tre—prepostaens 15 & Q- YV E -P‘L, hu ¥
The Court purports to leave open whather even the coroner’s autopsy ,-h e
report is to he excluded as being *fruit. of the poisonous tree” Presum- ‘Fu“;%cﬂ"l
ably the Court is alluding in n. 12 to Wong Sun v. United States, 371 e vy T W
U. 8. 471 (1963), but the opinion does not say so. 2"/& 5“
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To: The Chief Justice
Mr. Justice Brennan
. ‘ . Mr. Justlos Stewart
Mr. Justioe White
Mr. Justice Blackmun
Mx
Mr
Mr

N

. Justice Powell
. Justice Rehnquist
. Justice Stevens

From: Mr. Justice Marshall
Ciroulated: MAR 2 1977
1st DRAFT ' Reoirculated:
SUPREME COURT OF THE UNITED STATES '

No. 74-1263

Lou V. Brewer, Warden,
Petitioner,
.
Robert Anthony Williains,
aka Anthony Erthel
Williams.

On Writ of Certiorari to the ﬂ
United States Court of Apa |
peals for the Eighth Circuit,

[March —, 1977]

Mr. JusticE MARSHALL concurring.

1 cobeur wheleheartedly in iny Brother STEWART's opinion
for the Court, but add these words in light of the dissenting
opinions filed today. The dissenters have, T believe, lost sight
of the fundamental constitutional backbone of our eriminal
law. They seem to think that Detective Leaming’s actions
were perfectly proper, indeed laudable, examples of “good
nolice work.”  Tn my view, good police work is something far
different from catehing the criminal at any price. It is &
eually Iinportant that the police, as guardians of the law, T
fulfill thetr responsibility to obey its ecommandfserupulously.
For “in the end life and liberty can be as much endangered
from illegal methods used to conviet those thought to be
eriminals as from the actual ertiminals themselves.”  Spasno v.
New York, 360 UL S, 315, 320-321 (1959).

Iy this ease, there can be no doubt that Detective Leaming
consciously and knowingly set out to violate Williams® Sixth
Amendment right to counsel and his Fifth Amendment privi-
lege agalnst self-inerimination, as Leaming himself understood
those rights. Leaming knew that Williams had been advised
by two lawyers not to make any statements to police until
he conferred in Des Moines with his attorney there, Mr.
MeKinight. Leaming surely understood, because he had overs
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heard MeKnight tell Williams as much, that the loeation of
the body would be revealed to police. Undoubtedly Leaming
realized the way in which that information would be conveyed
to the police: MeKnight would learn it from his client and -
then he would lead police to the body. Williams would
thereby be protected by the attorney-client privilege from
ineriminating himself by directly demonstrating his knowl-
edge of the body’s location, and the unfortunate Davis child
could be given a “Christian bur1a1 ”

Of course, this scenario would accomplish all that Leammg
sought from his investigation exeept that it would not produce
incriminating statements or actions from Williams. Accord.
ingly, Leaming undertook his charade to pry such evidence
from Williams. After invoking the no-passengers rule to
prevent attorney Kelly from accompanying the prisoner,
Leaming had Williams at his mercy: during the three- or four-
hour trip he could do anything he wished to elicit a confession.
The detective demonstrated once again “that the efficiency
of the rack and the thumbscrew can be matched, given the
proper subject, by more sophisticated modes of ‘persuasion.’”
Blackburn v. Alabama, 361 U, S. 199, 206 (1960).

Leaming knowingly isolated Williams from the protection
of his lawyers and during that period he intentionally “per-
suaded” him to give incriminating evidence. Tt is this inten-
tional police misconduct—not good police practice—that the
Court rightly condemns. The heinous nature of the erime is
no excuse, as the dissenters would have it, for condoning know-
ing and intentional police transgression of the constitutional
rights of a defendant. If Williams is to go free—and given
the ingenuity of Towa prosecutors on retrial or in a civil com-
mitment proceeding, T doubt very much that there is any
chance a dangerous criminal will be loosed on the streets, the
blood-curdling eries of the dissents notwithstanding—it will
harely be because he deserves it. It will be because Detective
Leaming, kn(m-‘ing full well that he risked reversal of Williamg’
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convietion, mtentionally denied Williams the right of every
American under the Sixth Amendiment to have the protective
shield of a lawyer between himself and the awesome power of
the State. :

And if we are to indulge in quotations from our distin-
guished predecessors, I would choose not the rhetorie of
Justice Cardozo in the Defore case, see opinjon of the Chief
Justice. post, at 1, and n. 1, but rather the closing words of”
Justice Brandeis’ great dissent in Qlmstead v. United States,
277 U. 8. 438, 471 485 (1928):

“In a government of laws, existence of the government
will be mmperilled if it fails to observe the law scru-
pulously. Our Government is the potent, the omnipresent
teacher, For good or for ill, it teaches the whole people
by its example. Crime is contagious. If the Govern-
ment becomes a lawbreaker, it breeds contempt for law; it
invites every man to become a law unto himself; it invites
anarchy. To declare that in the administration of the

" eriminal law the end justifies the means—to declare that
the Government may commit erimmes in order to secure the
conviction of a private eriminal-—would bring terrible
retribution.  Against that pernicious doetrine this Court
should resolutely set its face.”
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MR, JUSTICE MARSHALL, concurring.

I concur wholeheartedly in mwy Brother Stewart’s opinion
for the Court, but add these words in light of the dissenting
opinions filed today. The dissenters have, 1 believe, lost sight
of the fundamental constitutional backbone of our eriminal
faw. They seem to think that Detective Leaming’s actions
were perfectly proper, indeed laudable, examples of “good
police work.”™ In my view, good police work is something far
different. from catching the eriminal at any price. It is’\%
cqually important that the police, as guardians of the law,
fulfill their responsibility to obey its comma.ndA' scru;)ulousiy_.
For “in the end life and liberty can be as much endangered
from illegal methods used to conviet those thought to be
eriminals as from the actual eriminals themselves.”  Spano v,
Nea York, 360 U, S, 315, 320-321 (1959).

In this case, there can be no doubt that Detective Leaming
conseiously and knowingly set out to violate Williams’ Sixth
Amendment right to counsel and his Fifth Ainendment privi-
lege against self-inerimination, as Leaming himself understood
those rights. Leaming knew that Williains had been advised
by two lawyers not to make any statements to police until
he conferred in Des Moines with his attorney there, Mr.
MeKnight.  Leaming surely understood, because he had overs
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heard McKnight tell Williams ag much, that the location of
the body would be revealed to police. Undoubtedly Leaming
realized the way in which that information would be conveyed
to the police: MeKnight would learn it from his client and
then he would lead police to the body. Williams would
thereby be protected by the attorney-client privilege from
ineriminating himself by directly demonstrating his knowl-
edge of the body’s location, and the unfortunate Davis child
could be given a “Christian burial.”

Of course, this scenario would accomplish all that Leaming
sought from his investigation except that it would not produce
incriminating statements or actions from Williams. Accord-
ingly, Leaming undertook his charade to pry such evidence
from Williams. After invoking the no-passengers rule to
prevent attorney Kelly from accompanying the prisoner,
Leaming had Williams at his mercy: during the three- or four-
hour trip he could do anything he wished to elicit a confession.
The detective demonstrated once again “that the efficiency
of the rack and the thumbscrew can be matched, given the
proper subject, by more sophisticated modes of ‘persuasion.’”
Blackburn v. Alabama, 361 U. 8. 199, 206 (1960).

Leaming knowingly isolated Williams from the protection
of his lawyers and during that period he intentionally “per-
suaded” him to give incriminating evidence. It is this inten-
tional police misconduct—not good police practice—that the
Court rightly condemns. The heinous nature of the crime is
no excuse, as the dissenters would have it, for condoning know-
ing and intentional police transgression of the constitutional
rights of a defendant. If Williams is to go free —and given
the ingenuity of Towa prosecutors on retrial or in a civil com-
mitment proceeding, T doubt very much that there is any
chanee a dangerous criminal will be loosed on the streets the
blood-curdling cries of the dissents notwithstanding—it will
hardly be because he deserves it. It will be because Detective
Leaming, knowing full well that he risked reversal of Williamg’
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conviction, intentionally denied Williams the right of every
American under the Sixth Amendment to have the protective
shield of a lawyer between himself and the awesome power of
the State.

And if we are to indulge in quotations from our distin.
guished predecessors, I would choose not the rhetoric of
Justice Cardozo in the Defore case, see opinion of the Chief
Justige, post, at 1, and n. 1, but rather the (,losmgmﬁf
Justice Brandeis’ great dissent in Olmstead v. United States,
277 U. 8. 438, 471, 485 (1928):

“In a government of laws, existence of the government
will be imperilled if it fails to observe the law scru-
pulousty. Our Government is the potent, the omnipresent
teacher. For good or for ill, it teaches the whole people
by its example. Crime is contagious. If the Govern-
ment becomes a lawbreaker, it breeds contempt for law; it
imvites cvery man to become a law unto himself; it invites
anarchy. To declare that in the administration of the
eriminal law the end justifies the means—to declare that
the Government may commit erimes i order to secure the
couviction of a private criminal—would bring terrible
retribution.  Against that pernicious doctrine this Court
should resolutely set its face,” ‘
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MR. JUSTICE STEVENS, coheurring.

The reasons why the law requires the result we reach today’
are accurately explained by Mg, Justice StEwarT for the
Court and by Mr. Justice PoweLr. The strong language in
the dissenting opinions prompts me to add this brief comment
about the Court’s function in a case such as this.

Nothing that we write, no natter how well reasoned or
forcefully expressed, can bring back the vietim of this tragedy
or undo the consequences of the official neglect which led to
the respondent’s eseape from a State mental institution. The
emotional aspects of the case make it difficult to decide dis-
passionhately, but do not qualify our obligation to apply the
law with an eye to the future as well as with concern for the
result in the particular case before us.

Underlying the surface issues’ in this case is the guestion
whether a fugitive from justice can rely on his lawyer’s advice
given in connection with a decision to surrender voluntarily,
The defendant placed his trust in an experienced Iowa trial
lawyer who in turn trusted the [owa law enforcement authori-
ties to honor a commitiment made during negotiations which
led to the apprehension of a potentially dangerous- person,
Under any analysis, this was a critical stage of the proceeding

- in which the participation of an independent professional was
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of vital importance to the accused and to society. At thig
stage—as in countless others in which the law profoundly
affects the life of the individual-—the lawyer is the essential
medium through which the demands ahd commitments of the
sovereign are communicated to the citizen. If, in the long
run, we are seriously concerned about the individual's effective
representation by counsel, the State cannot be permitted to
dishonor its promnise to this barrister,*

o

*The importanee of this point is emphasized by the State’s refusal to
permit connsel to accompuany his client. on the trip from Davenport to
Des Moines,
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Tices WHITE and BrackmuN, I categorically reject the
absurd notion that the police in this case were guilty of
unconstitutional, misconduet, or any conduct justifying the
.bizarre result reached by the Court. Apart from a brief
comment on the merits, however, I wish to focus on the
irrationality of applying the increasingly discredited ex-
clusionary rule to this case.

(1)

The Court Concedes Williams® Disclosures Were Voluntary '

Under well-settled precedents which the Court freely
acknowledges, it is very clear that Williams had made a
valid waiver of his Fifth Ainendment right to silence and his
Sixth Amendment right to counsel when he led police to the
child’s body. Indeed, even under the Court’s analysis I do
not understand how a contrary conclusion is possible.

- The Court purports to apply as the appropriate constitu-
tional waiver standard the familiar “intentional relinquish-
ment or abandonment of a known right or privilege” test
of Johnson v. Zerbst, 304 U. S. 458, 464 (1938). Ante, at 15.
The Court assumes, without deciding, that Williams’ conduct
and statements were voluntary. Ante, at 9. It concedes,

derer goes free” People v. Defore, 242 N. Y. 13, 21, 23-24, 150 N. E_ 585,
587, 588 (1926). '

Perhaps one of the most extraordinary aspects of this extraordinary
holding 15 ante, at 18 n. 12. There the Court states that it “‘does not
touch upon the issue of what evid:uce, if any, beyond the ineriminating
statements themselves must be excluded as “fruit of the poisonous tree.” '™
Unless the Court explicitly states otherwise I would read the Court’s
opinion—and I submit. the state courts are free to read it—as permitting
Detective Leaming to explain how the body was found so long as he
dov- not repeat any “incriminating statements” made by W]lhams To

ot SR e e T foéﬂq

ﬂ'Absent further explication by the Court, opinion
may be fairly read as applying the exclusionary rule to no
evidence "beyond the incriminating statements themselves" 5u~uk(
because those statements are held to be "fruit of the p01gMbous
tree." Since this ambiguous expression in the Court's
opinion is followed by the Court's observation challéenging
Mr. Justice Blackmun's comment that retrial will be futile,
the State courts will be fully justified in reading today's
holding as reguiring exclusion of nothing except Williams'
"statements themselves." An explanation by Detective
Leaming that Williams guided them to the body is apparently
admissible so long as Williams' statements are not repeated.

s -y

It is of course common for witnesses to describe conduct of
an accused without repeating any conversation.

[ ——




March 23, 1977

No. 74-1263 Brewer v. Williams

Justice Powell--

We vote unanimously that you showed considerable
restraint given the Chief's "performance." We have
sent out for a bushel of roften tomatoes;

Spencer
Sally
Linda
Charlie
Tyler
Gene
David

o
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MEMORANDUM ¢

TO: Gene Comey , DATE: March 28, 1977
FROM: Lewis F. Powell, Jr.

Brewer v, Williams

Columnist George Will (Sunday's Post) did not seem
terribly enthusiastic about the majority opinion in the
above case. |

He even suggested,; as I read him, that I did not know
the difference between the day before and the day after
Christmas. Although there-is often some truth to this, I

- would like to correct my opinion if it errs in this respect.

2.0

58
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TO:
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3/28/77

MEMORANDUM

Gene Comey DATE: March 28, 1977
Lewis F. Powell, Jr.

‘Brewer v, Williams

Columnist George Will (Sunday's Post) did not seem

terribly enthusiastic about the majority opinion in the

above case.

e

He even suggested as I read him, that I did not know v

i
i

/

the difference between the ‘day before and the day after /_"

' Christmas.

Although there is often some truth to this, I

would like to correct my opinion if it errs in this respect.

88

H

L.F.P., Jr.
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